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independent Auditors’ Report

To the shareholders of CIB Bank Zrt.
Repori on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying 2015 consolidated financial statements of CIB Bank Zrt.
(hereinafter referred to as “the Bank”) and its subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015, which shows total assets of MHUF 1,675,707,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, which shows loss for the vear of MHUF 40,224,
and the consclidated statemenis of changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and
noles, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information,

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, as adopted by the EU,
and for such internal contref as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error,
Auditors’ Responsibifity

Qur responsibiiity is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Hungarian National Standards on Auditing and
applicable faws and regulations in Hungary. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
reguirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consofidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant
to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order o
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, hut not for the purpose of
exprassing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal controt. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting pelicies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evatuating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion

fn our opinion, the consolidated financial staternents give a true and fair view of the consoclidated
financial position of CiB Bank Zrt. and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015, and of their

consclidated financial performance and their consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU.

This is an English transtabion of the Indapendent Auditors” Hepor on e 2005 conselidated financis statemeants
of the O Bank Zri fssued in Hungarian 1 there are any differences, the Hungarian language original provails,
This report shouwld e raar
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Report on the Consolidated Business Report

We have audited the accompanying 2015 consolidated business report of CIB Bank Zrt. and ifs
subsidiaries.

Management is responsibie for the preparation of the consolidated business report in accordance
with the provisions of the Hungarian Act on Accounting. Our responsibility is to assess whether this
consolidated business report is consistent with the consolidated financial statements prepared for the
same business year. Our work with respect to the consolidated business report was limited to the
assessment of the consistency of the consolidated business report with the consolidated financial
statements, and did not include a review of any information other than that drawn from the audited
accounting records of the Bank and its subsidiaries.

In cur opinion, the 2015 consolidated business report of CIB Bank Zrt. and its subsidiaries is
consistent with the data included in the 2015 consolidated financial statements of CIB Bank Zrt, and
its subsidiaries,

Budapest, 17 February 2016

IKPMG Hungaéria Kft.
Registration number: 000202

Istvdn Henye Zoltan Madi-Szabé
Istvan Henye Zoltan Madi-Szabo
Partner Professional Accountant

Registration number: 003247

Tris s an English ransiation of the Independant Auditors” Baport onihe 2015 cangolidated financis! staternents
of the CIE Bank Zri. issued in Hungarian, B ithere are any differences, the Huagarian language original prevails,
This reporl showld be read I conjunstion wilh the commplaie consatidaied financial stadaemoenis i refers (o,
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1 CIB BANK

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2015
{million HUF)

CIB BANK L.td.
and its subsidiaries

2014

Note 2015
Interast incomé 7 : 4?,00?-“- 67,397
interest expense 7 {17,488) (27,366)
Net interest income 29,519 40,031
Fee and commission income 8 32,260 34,243
Fee and commission expense 8 (4.474) {4,799)
Net fee and commission income 27,786 29,444
Income from trading activities 9 {3,397) 13,899
Other operating income 10 5,854 2,868
Net banking income 59,762 86,242
Impairment losses on loans 11 (35,910) (41,482)
Net loan losses and provision acco}ding to Settlement Law 11 5,231 (70;205)
Other impairment losses and provisions 11 (564) {6,865)
Operating expenses without bank tax 12 (53,810) (56,480)
Loss before bank fax and income taxes (25,291) (88,790)
Bank tax 143 {11,803) {11,903)
Loss before income taxes {37,194-) {100,693)
income tax expense 14 (3,030} t3.447)
Net loss for the year (40,224) (104,140}

17 February 2016

’ CEC and Chairmaﬁ of the Board

CIB Bank Lid.

ey

) Andrea De Mlchelis

Deputy CEO and CFO

The accompanying notes on pages 12 to 78 form part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CIB BANK Ltd.

and its subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2015

{miilion HUF)

Note 2015 2014
Net joss for the year ' (40,224) (104,140)
ltems that may not be reclassified to profit or loss - B
ltems tha__t may be reclassified to profit or loss 3,284 236
Net non-realised {loss) / gain on available-for-sale financial assets
(net of taxes) 3.284 236
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of taxes) 16 3,284 236
Total comprehensive income, for the year (36,940) (103,904)
Attributable to Equity holders of the parent (36,940} {103,904)

_ // el

" Andrea De Mig elis

I Pal Sim

//CEO and Chairman of the Board Deputy CEQ and CFO

CiB Bank Ltd.

6 Bank of INTES4
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-Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2015
{million HUF)

CIB BANK Ltd.
and its subsidiaries

Assets

Note

31 December 31 December

2015 2014
" Cash and current accounts with central bank 17 23,259 27,335
Due from banks . 1.8 479,385 302,857
dF(ianriavr;ct::fL:ssets at fair value through profit or loss excluded 19 50,622 12,476
Derivative financial assets 15,371 19,599
Loans and advances fo customers 20 1,093,801 1,339,180
Alfowance for foan fosses 20 {183,5697) {277,758}
Net loans and advances to customers 910,204 1,061,422
Financial investments — Available-for-sale 22 78,892 182,793
Non-current assets held for sale 16 - 4,024 947
Current tax assets 14 6,160 7,187
Deferred tax assets 14 201 750
QOther assets 21 5,256 5,038
Repossessed properiies 23 - 87,750 86,199
intangibie assets_ 24 8,504 7,306
Property and equipment 25 17,072 19,733
Total assets 1675707 1,733,642
17 February 2016
- SNV
 Andrea De Michelfs
Deputy CEQ and CFO
CIB Bank Ltd.

The accompanying notes on pages 12 to 78 form part of these Consolidated Financial Statements,
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| CIB BANK

I

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2015
{million HUF)

CIB BANK Ltd.
and its subsidiaries

31 December 31 December

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity Note 2015 2014
Deposits from banks 26 225,029 2;3.655
Derivative financial liabilities 12,709 18,846
.Deposits from customers 27 1,179,706 1,114,740
Liabilities from issued securities 28 28,162 91,140
Current tax liabilities 3,776 4,367
Deferred tax liabilities 14 817 1,549
Other liabilities 29 15,610 10,701
Provisions 30 5,637 37,214
Subordinated debt 3 56,421 56,740
Total liabilities 1,527,867 1,548,862
Shareholders' equity

Share capital 32 50,000 145,000
Reserves 33 431,276 332,002
Retained earnings (333,436) (293,212}
Total shargho!ders' equity 147,840 184,780
Tota.l liabilities and shareh.o.iders' equity 1,675,707 1,733,642

17 February 2016

_—~Dr. P4l Sim4

~GEO and Chairman of the Board

-~ /
Y f:/

\
ST

“Andrea De Michelis
Deputy CEO and CFO

CiB Bank Lid.

..... AN
I Q’)b

The accompanying notes on pages 12 to 78 form part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CIB BANK Ltd.
and its subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flow
for the year ended 31 December 2015

{million HUF)
Note 2015 2014
Operating activities S T
Profit {loss} before tax (37,194) {100,693)
Depreciation 12 4,033 5,834
Net unrealized (gain) / loss on financial instruments {1,134) (3,235)
Increase in allowance for foan losses (94,161) {71,978)
Increase in aliowance for repossessed properties and own properties (2,884} {13)
Working capital changes:
Iii())zgrease { (increase) in financial assets at fair value through profit or 19 (44,326) {4,799}
Decrease / {increase} in loans and advances to customers 20 277,826 290,067 -
Decrease / (increase) in other assets {non-current assets,
tax assets, other assets) 21 898 7,479
Increase / (decrease) in deposits from banks 26 11,374 (102,794)
" Increase / (decrease) in deposits from customers and liabilities
from issued securities 28 1.925 (46,578)
Increase / (decrease) in other liabilities (provisions, tax liabilities, 29
other liabifities) 30 (27.273) 28,184
income fax charged 14 (3,199) (3,730)
Cash flows used in operating activities 85,875 (2,256)
Investing activities
Purchase of financiaf investments (78,671) {359,812)
Proceeds from sale of financial investments 144,918 267,390
_ Acquisitions to intangible and tangible assets (3,248) (3.235)
Acquisitions to repossessed properties (10,775) {17,105)
Disposals of intangible and tangible assets - 177 1,261
Cash flows used in investing activities 52,401 {111,501)
Financing activities
Subordinated debt 31 {319) {10,143) _
Cash from share capital _ 32 ' - 67,000
Other equity contribution : - 49,137
Cash flows from financing activities (319) 105,994
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 41 137,957 (7,763}
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year - 41 367,981 375,451
E;fledci of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and equivalenis (604) 994
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 41 505,334 367,981
17 February 2016 .
Y /) | .
. :5 (JZ / /Q P
HZ 4 ,{ 2 / . AKX )
__—"Dr. Pal Simak Andrea De Michelis
P ~~CEOQ and Chairman of the Board Deputy CEQ and CFQ

CIB Bank Lid.

10



JCIB BANK G1B BANK L.

and its subsidiaries

Consclidated Statements of Cash Flow
for the year ended 31 December 2015
(million HUF)

Additional information for cash flows from operating activities

. 2015 2014
Interest received - o | 50,620 67,573
Interest paid _ 17,931 26,268
Dividend received ” ' 4 3
Income tax paid 3,544 2,614
Cash and cash equivalents presents the following balance sheet categories
2015 2014
Cash and current accounts with central bank compfflgés 23,259 27,33;-
Due from banks 479,385 302,857
Financiaf assets at fair value through profit or joss 2,690 - 33
Financial investments - 37,756
"~ Cash and cash eciuivaients at the year end 505,334 367,981

» ~ Bank of INTESA 7] SNNRAOLO

The accempanying notes on pages 12 to 78 form part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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¥ CIB BANK CIB BANK Ltd.

. and its subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2015

Part A — Accounting policies

{1} Corporate information

The maijority owner of CIB Bank Lid. (“the Bank”) is Intesa Sanpacio Helding International S.A.
AU 1724 Luxembourg, Beulevard du Prince Henri 35./ which holds 67.6905% of the total ordinary
shares of the Bank outstanding at year end {67.6905% as at 31 December 2014), The ultimate
parent company of the Bank is Intesa Sanpaolo S.p.A. /T Torino, Piazza San Carlo 156/, a bank
registered in italy that holds 32.3095% of the shares of the Bank as at 31 December 2015
{32.3095% as at 31 December 2014).

The Bank is a fully licensed Hungarian bank conducting local and international banking business
both within and outside Hungary. The registered address of the Bank is 4-14 Medve ufca,
Budapest. The average number of active employees of the Bank and its subsidiaries was
2,530 in 2015 and 2,921 in 2014, respectively.

As at 31 December 2015 the Bank had the following subsidiaries {"the Group"):

CIB Group's Country of
Company o, share incorporation Principal Business
CiB Leasing Co. Ltd. 100% Hungary Financiat leasing services
ClB RENT Leasing and o ) : .
Trading Company Ltd. 100% Hungary Leasmgmserwces _____
Etl(? Real Estate Leasing Co. 100% Hungary Real estate leasing services
CIB Insurance Broker Lid. 100% Hungary | Insurance agency services
CIB Factor Ltd. 100% Hungary Factoring financing services
Recovery Ltd. 100% . Hungary Professional services
CIB Car Ltd. 100% Hungary Car frading services
e Property cféﬁélopment"_é'ﬁa"lwm
0,
Briven Hungary Lid. 100% Hungary maintenance services

The winding up procedure of CiB Leasing Holding Ltd. closed on 13 January 2015.

The Consolidated Financial Statementis for the year ended 31 December 2015 were authorized for
issue in accordance with a resolution of the Management Board or: 17 February 2016.

The Bank is consolidated by its uitimate parent company. The ultimate parent company's
consolidated financial statements are available at www.ntesasanpaolo.com web site.

1 Bank of INTESA 7] SA\NPAOLO



i

- Notes to the Consolidated Flnancial Statements

CIB BANK CIB BANK Ltd.

and its subsidiaries

for the year ended 31 December 2015

2)

(3)

{4)

{5)

Statement of compliance

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) and the relative interpretations of the Infernationat Financiai Reporiing
Interpretations Committee {IFRIC} as adopted by European Union.

The eriginal Consolidated Financial Statements has been prepared in Hungarian and it is the
transiation of the Hungarian version. The original consolidated financial statements are available at
www.cih.hu web site,

Basis of preparation

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group have been prepared on a historical cost basis,
except for available-for-sale financial assets, derivative financial instruments, other financial assets
and liabilities held for trading, which all have been measured at fair value. The camying vaiues of
recognized assets and liabilities that are hedged items in fair value hedges are adjusted {o record
changes in fair value of hadged items attributable o the risks that are heing hedged.

These Financial Statements are presented in Hungarian Forint {HUF) and all amounts are rounded
to the nearest million except when otherwise stated.

The official rate of exchange quoted by the Hungarian Central Bank as at 31 December 2015
the euro was EUR 1 = HUF 313.12 (2014: EUR 1 = HUF 314.89) and Swiss Franc was
CHF 1 = HUF 289.38 {2014: CHF 1 = HUF 261.85).

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and net amount presented in the Statement of
Firancial Position when, and only when the Group has a legal right to set off the amounts and it
infends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneousty.

Basis of consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise the financial statements of CiB Bank Lid. and its
subsidiaries as at 31 December each year. The financial siatements of subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting year as the parent company, using accounting policies consistent with those
of the parent.

All inter-company balances and fransactions, including unrealized profits arising from intra-group
transactions, have been eliminated in full.

Subsidiaries are investees controlled by the Bank. According to IFRS 10 the Bank controls an
investee if it is exposed to or has the right to, variable return fram its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which control commences untif the date when controf ceases. The
list of consolidated subsidiaries is included in Note (1).

Business combinations and transactions under common conirel during 2015 are detailed in Note
42, '

Significant accounting judgmenis and estimates

In preparing these consclidated financial statemenis management has made judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of the Group’s accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, Habilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates,
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates
are recognized prospectively.

7 SNNIAOLO
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1 CIB BANK | | CIB BANK Ltd.

and its subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2015

(5) Significant accounting judgments and estimates (continued)

The most significant cases for which judgments and estimates are required to be made by the
management include:

. the use of measurement models for determining the fair vaiue of financial instruments not
listed on active markets,

+ the measurement of impairment losses on loans and other financial assets,

o  recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which carry
forward tax losses can be used, '

» the measurement of impairment on nen-financial assets,

. the measurement of impairment on available-for-sale investments,
« the measuremeni of provisions for risk and charges,

. the measurement of impairment on repossessed properties.

(a) Fair value of financial instruments -

Where the fair values of financial assets and liabilittes recorded in the Statement of Financial
Pasition cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of vatuation
techniques that include the use of mathematical models, The input to these models is taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required
in establishing fair values.

(b} iImpairment losses on foans and advances

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there is objective evidence that loans and
advances are impaired. Loans and advances are impaired when objective evidence demonstrates
that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset(s) and that the loss event has
an impact on the future cash flows of the asset{s) that can be estimated reliably.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes:
«  significant financial difficuity of the borrower,

e  default or delinguency by a borrower,

. the restructuring of a ioan or advance by the Group on terms that the Group would not
consider atherwise,

. indications that the borrower will enter bankruptcy,

. observable data relating to a group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment status
of borrowers in the group, or economic conditions that correlate with defaults in the graup.

The Group considers evidence of impairment for foans and advances at both a specific asset and a
collective level.

All individually significant loans and advances are assessed for specific impairment. The individual
companent of the fotal allowance for impairment is based on management's best esfimate of the
present value of the cash flows that are expected to be received. in estimating these cash flows,
management makes judgements about a debtor's financial situation and the net realizable value of
any underlying collateral.

Each impaired asset is assessed on its merits, and the workout strategy and estimate of cash flows

considered recoverable are independently approved by Credit Risk function.

A collective component of the total allowance is established for:

. groups of homogeneous loans that are not considered individually significant, and

« groups of assets that are individually significant but that were not found to be individually
impaired (loss incurred but not reported).

In assessing the need for collective loss allowance, management considers factors such as credit
quality, portfolio size, concentration and economic factors.

Parameters used in the collective assessment are calculated with statistical methodologies and
models which are to the largest extent possible aligned or identical to those used in the processes
of approvat of facilities or calculation of capital adequacy.

SANNPAOLO
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CIB BANK o d!B BANK Ltd.

and its subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2015

(3)

Significant accounting judgments and estimates {continued)

The formula of impairment / provision is as fallows.
Losses = EAD * PD * L.GD * LCP

The details of the parameters used are as follows,

o Exposure af defaulf (FAD). The exposure censists of on-balance sheet assets and off-balance
sheet liabitities, where off-balance sheet exposure represents the amount of contingent off-
batance sheet liabitities of the Bank adjusted by a credit conversion factor {CCF} to convert
off-balance sheet exposure into an on-balance sheet equivalent and is add it to the actual on-
palance sheet exposure. The credit conversion factor is defined at the level of loan facilities
and is calculated using the simplified statistical methods adopted for Internal Capital
Adequacy Assessment (JCAAP) purposes.

. Probability of defaulf (PD). PD component determines probability of default, i.e. the probability
of transition from the performing portfolio fo the non-performing portfolio on debtor jevel. The
PD component is the resuit of a combination of ebjective and subjective information about the
debtor's credit-worthiness. The PD component for the retail (private individuals and
entrepreneurs), small business, corporate (SME and large corporate) and project segments is
calculated with statistically developed models. For each menfioned segment the Bank is using
a separate, segment-specific modet for the catculation of PDs and internal ratings. The models
were developed with the through-the~cycle approach.

e  Loss given at default (LGD). LGD calculated by porifolio segments is the measure of losses
incurred on facilities that have defaulted. Assuming that the process of collection of the
existing and future non-performing facilities of the Bank will be equally or similarly efficient as
the historicat collection, LGD also represents the assessment of future losses on each facility
that will default. For the purpose of the assessment of impairment / provision, the Bank uses
the results of a simplified statistical method that was approved for Internal Capital Adequacy
Assessment (ICAAP) purposes with downturn adjustments. Until the Advanced internal Rating
Based approach (AIRB) compliant L GD models are under development the Bank keeps using
the ICAAP L.GDs for impairment / provision calcuiation. '

. Loss identification period. internal methodology measures losses in a limited period of time
(loss confirmation period - LCP) which is integrated in the calculation of losses and represents
a period of time between the occurrence of the event that generates loss {e.g. loss of job) and
manifestation of the evidence of loss (e.g. delinquency in settling obligations to the Bank). in
the context of the internal methodology, the LCP parameter distinguishes between expected
annual losses and the portion of these losses that have already been incurred but have not
yet been reported, Considering the technical difficutties in the statistical measurement of the
LCP parameter (the period of time between known and unknown events is measured), CIB
Group uses LCP=1 for each exposure.

For the portfolio segments with insufficient homogeneous set of data for statistical assessment of
foss, the Bank uses the experience-based assumptions of the quality and behaviour of the portfolio
in the past, risk profile of the portfotio, external ratings, guidelines obtained from the parent bank
and other avaitable and relevant information. In this way, the specific, expert judgment hased
impairment / provision rates have been defined for:

. centrai governments and central banks;

. public sector entities treated as institutions;

. municipalities;

. institutions. .

The parameters used in the impairment / provision calculation is subject to regular internal reviews

" in order to ensure that those aiways reflect a best estimate for expected credit risk losses.

Management can apply judgment to ensure that the estimate of loss arrived at on the basis of
nistorical information is appropriately adjusted fo refiect the economic conditions and product mix at
the reporting date ’
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~ {5) Significant accounting judgments and estimates {continued}

{c) Recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which
carry forward tax losses can be used :

Deferred tax assets are recognized for ail unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilized. Management estimation is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assels that can be recognized, based upon the
likely timing and tevel of future taxabie profits together with future tax planning strategies.

The Group had unused tax loss carry forwards as of 31 December 2014 and 2015, These losses
relate to the Bank and to subsidiaries that have a history of losses. Due to the current market and
economic conditions fhe management considered per individual entities whether the Bank and
subsidiaries will have tax planning opportunities avaitable that could support the recognition of
these losses as deferred tax assets.

(d) Impairment on non-financial assets

impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash generating unit exceeds is
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs to self and its vaiue in use. The
fair value less costs 1o seli calculation based on avaiiable data from binding sales transactions in an
arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for
disposing the asset, The value in use caiculation is based on discounted cash flow modet.

(e} Impairment on available-for-sale investments

The Group reviews its debt securities classified as available-for-sate investments at each reporting
date to assess whether they are impaired. This requires similar judgment as applied to the
individual assessment of loans and advances.

The Group also records impairment charges on available-for-sale equity invesiments when there
has been a significant or prolonged dectine in the fair vaiue below their cost.

The determination of what is ‘significant or 'prolonged’ requires judgment. In making this judgment
the Group evaluates among other factors historical share price movements and duration and extent
10 which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.

(P Provisions for risk and charges

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settie the obligation. n assessing and determining the amount of obligation the Group considers
whether a refiable estimate can be made of the amount of outflow of economic benefits.

Supreme Court's Law and Settlement Law released in July and Qctober, 2014 covered all HUF and
foreign currency retail foan and financial jeasing contracts. According to the Supreme Court
decision the exchange rate bid-ask spread used by the banks was considered as nutl and void, and
general contract conditions are unfair, which aliowed the unilateral changes of prices. Settlement
with the customers was conducted through 4 phases during 2015. Provision made for setiiement
‘was entirely used during 2015.

(g) impairment on repossessed properties

Repossessed assets shall be measured at the lower of cost and fair value less cost to sell
{FVLCTS).

Subsequent to initial recognition repossessed properties are annually tested for impairment and
stated at the lower of cost and FVLCTS. The Group regards the market value determined by
external valuations as the FVLCTS for its repossessed real estates.

The basis of the impairment calcuiation is the market value determined by an external valuation
dated less than 90 days from the retevant year end date. External valuation shouid be prepared for
all commercial assets, and for residential assets above or equal net book vaiue of HUF 50 miilion.
For residential assets below net book value of HUF 50 million external vatuations should be
prepared in every 3 years and during the intervening period statistical revaluation couid be applied.
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{6) Significant accounting policies

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these Consolidated Financial
Statements are set out below: : o

6.1 Foreign currency transactions

The presentation currency of the Group is the Hungarian Forint {HUF). Transactions in foreign
currencies are transiated into the respective functional currency of Group entities at the spot
exchange rates at the date of transactions

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are

translated using the exchange rate as at the date of initial fransaction. Non-monetary items

measured at fair value in a foreign currency are transiated inio the functional currency at the spot.
. exchange rate at the date on which the fair value is determined.

Foreign currency differences arising on translation are generally recognized in profit or loss.
However foreign currency differences arising from the translation of the following items are
recognized in OCI:

‘e available-for-sale equity instruments,

6.2 initial measurement of financial instruments

The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on the purpose with

- management's intention for which the financial instruments were acquired and their characteristics.
All financiat instruments are measured inifiaily at their fair value plus {ransaction costs, except for
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at fair value through profit or oss.

6.3 Date of recognition

All “regular way” purchases and sales of financial assets and liabilities are recognized on the
settlement date, i.e. the date that the financial asset is delivered except for derivatives, Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales that require defivery of assets within the time frame
generally established by regufation or convention in the market place.

Derivatives are recognized on a trade date basis. Trade date is the date that the Group commits
itself {o purchase or sell an asset.

6.4 Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised when:
. The coniractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired.

. The Group has transferred its righis to receive cash-flows from the asset or has assumed an
abligation to pay the received cash-flows in full without material delay to a third parly and
either:

- the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

- the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
' the asset but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered info a
pass-through arrangement and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the assel, the asset is recognised fo the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
fiability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflecis the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Retail foan and financial leasing contracts denominated in foreign currencies were subject to
conversation to HUF according to the Supreme Court's Law and Seftlement Law released in July
and QOclober, 2014, After conducting the setilement process, all the related exposures were
converted fo HUF during 2015. Change in denomingtion of the currency qualifies for derecognition
and consequentiy the related exposures should be released from books and recorded as a new
‘disbursement. The initial fair value for recognition equals to the latest net carrying vatue of the
financial assets before conversation according to the Bank's estimation.
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{6) Significant accounting policies

A financial lfability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. ' Where an existing financial liability is replaced by ancther from the same lender on
substanfially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liabifity. The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the
consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

6.5 Financial asset af fair value through profit and loss

Financial assels or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets and
-financiai liabilities that are classified either as held for trading or designated by the Group as at fair
value through profit or i0ss upon initial recognition. These financial instruments are carried at fair
value with any gain or loss arising from change in fair value being included as Income from trading
activities in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive income in the period in which it arises.

Included in this category debt securities, equities and short positions that have been acquired
principaily for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term or holds as part of a portfollo
that is managed together for shori-term profit or posmon taking.

6.6 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include notes and coins on hand, unresfricted balances held with
central bank and highly liquid financial assets with original maturities of three months or fess from
the acquisition date that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in the fair value and are used
by the Group in the management of its short term commitments.

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortized cost in the statement of financial position,

6.7 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair vajue on the date on which a derivative contract is entered
intc and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value. Fair values are obtained from quoted
market prices, and valuation techniques such as discounted cash flow models. All derivatives are
carried as assets when fair value is posifive and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

The method of recognising the resutting fair value gain or foss depends on whether the derivative is
designated as a hedging instrument. The Group, in accordance with the Intesa Sanpaolo Group’s
policies, designates certain derivatives as hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities
or firm commitments (fair value hedge). Hedge accounting is used for derivatives designated in this
way provided the foliowing criteria are met,

The Group documents, at the inception of the transaction, the refationship between hedging
instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk marnagement objective and strategy for
undertaking various hedge transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at hedge
inception and on an ongomg basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions
are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values of hedged Hems (efficiency tests). The
effectiveness of the hedge must be tested both at its inception {desighation of hedging relatlonshlp}
and regularly during the entire lifetime of the hedge. In the case of a fair value hedge, changes in
the fair value of derivatives that are designated as hedging items in fair value hedges are recorded
in the profit or loss, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that
are attributable to the hedged risk,

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the adjustment to the carrying -
amount of & hedged item for which the effective interest method is used is amertised to profit or
loss aver the period to maturity, -

i the hedged item is derecognised, the unamortized fair value adjustment is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

IAS 39 Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement requires hedge effectiveness to be
assessed both prospectively and retrospectively. Retrospective {est reveals the degree of hedge
effectiveness achieved during the period from designation to the performance of the test; in other
words, it measuras how much the actual results have deviated from those of a perfect hedge.
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Prospective test demonstrates the expected effectiveness of the hedge in futwe periods. To qualify
for hedge accounting at the inception of a hedge and, at a minimum, at each reporting date, the
delta change in the fair vatue or cash flows of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk must
be expected to be highly effective in offsetting the changes in the deita fair value or cash flows of
the hedging instrument on a prospective basis, and on a retrospective basis where actuai results
are within a range of 80% to 125%.

The Group applies hedge accounting to its fixed rate assets and liahiities hedged by interest rate
swaps in order to mitigate its interest rate risk in t_he banking book.

6.8 Due from banks

Due from banks include financiat assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market, other than; '

. Those the Group intends to sell immediately or-in the near term and those that the Group
upon initial recognition designates as at fair value through profit or loss,

. Those that the Group upon initial recognition designates as available-for-sale,

s Those for which the Group may not recover substantiatty all of its initial investment other than
because of credit deterioration.

After initia measurement Due from banks are stated at amortized cost less any amounts written off
and ailowance for impairment. The amortisation is included in Interest income in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive income in impairment losses, provisions and net loan
lossss. '

Where the loan on drawdown is expected to be retained by the Group and not sold in short term the
commitment is recorded only when the commitment is an onerous contract and it is likety to give
rise {o a loss {for example due to a counterparty credit event).

6.9 Loans and ad’vances to customers

Loans and advances are financial assets with fixed or determinabie payments and fixed maturities
that are not quoted in an active market and are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest
rate method Jess aliowance for impairment. Third party expenses, such as legal fees, incurred in
secuwring a loan are treated as part of the cost of the transaction. All loans and advances are
recognized when cash is advanced fo borrowers,

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financiaf asset is
deamed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or
more events that has occurred after the inifial racognition of the asset and that loss event has an
impact on the established future cash fiows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may inciude indications that the borrower or a group of borrowers is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, the probability that they will enter bankruptey or other
financial reorganisation, default or delinquency in interest or principal repayments and where
observable data indicates that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows,
such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

A credit risk allowance for loan impairment is established for significant loans if there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due. i the Group determines that no
objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed loan, whether significant or not,
It includes the loan in a group of financial assets with simitar credit risk characteristics and
collectively assesses them for impairmant.

Loans that are individually assessed for impairment {over HUF 75 miliion in case of non performing
status)) and for which an impairment foss is, or continues {o be, recognized are not included in a
coflective assessment of impairment. When a ioan is uncallectible, it is written off against the
related aflowance for impairment; subsequent recoveries are recognized in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income as other operating income.
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If the amount of the impairment subsequently decreases due to an event ocourring after the write-
down, the release of the allowance is credited o the allowance.

For the purpose of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis
of the Group's internat systems that consider credit risk characteristics such as asset type, industry,
geographical location, collateral type, past-due status and other relevant factors and have been
estimated based upon historical patterns of losses in each component.

The general mostly applied rule of calculating impairments and allowances are based on
discounted expected future cash flow method, with best available data for the Group. The present
value of the avaifable estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate. ¥f a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest rate. The calculation of the present value of the
available estimated future cash flows of a collateralized financial asset reflects the cash flows that
may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the coliateral, whether or not
foreclosure is probabie.

Loans and advances to customers are classified fo the non-performing loan category if the
receivable is individually impaired. Evidence of impairment may include that the borrower is
experiencing significant financial difficuities (is under liquidation), the probability that they wifl enter
into bankruptcy (past due rate is 100%) or delinquency in interest or principal payments (have more
than 90 days past due) and where observable data indicates that there is a change in economic
conditions that correlate with default (managed by work-out department). For more information on
non-performing loans see Note (45} on Risk Management.

Where possible the Group seeks to restructure loans rather than to {ake possession of collateral.
Restructuring may involve extending the payment period arrangements and the agreement of new
loan conditions, particularly. interest level. Management continuously monitors renegotiated or
restructured loans to ensure that alt criteria are met and that future payments are likely fo occur.
The loans continue to be subject fo an individual or coflective impairment assessment.

6.10 Finance lease receivables

Leases where the Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
an assef are classified as finance leases. The net investment in finance leases provided by the
Group is included in loans and advances to customers. A receivable is recognized over the lgasing
period of an amount equaling the present value of the lease payment using the implicit rate of
interest at the inception of the fease and including any residual value that has been guaranteed:
whether by the lessee, a party related to the lessee, or an independent third party. All income
resulting from the receivable is included in Interest income in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income, except for the residual value accounted as other operating income (expense) when closing
the contract,

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a Iease is based on the substance of

the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfiiment of the arrangement is

dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right {0 use the

asset.

A reassessment is made after inception of the lease only if one of the foliowing applies:

. there is a change in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the arrangement;

. a renewal option is exercised or extension granted, uniess the term of the renewai or
extension was initially included in the lease term;

* there is a change in the determination of whether fulfilment is dependent on a specified asset;
or

. there is substantial change to the asset,
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6.11 Financial investments — Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity financial investments are non-derivative financial assets which carry fixed of
determinable payments and have fixed maturities and which the Group has the intention and ability
tc hold to maturity. After initial measurement, held-to-mafurity financial investments are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method less aliowance
for impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The amortization is
included in “interest income” in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

6.12 Financial investments - Available-for-sale

Avallable-for-sale financial investments are those which are designated as such or are not
classified as designated at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity or loans and advances.
After initial recognition, investments which are classified ‘available-for-sale’ are re-measured at fair
value. Unrealized gains and losses on re-measurement to fair value are reported in the
Consclidated Statement of Cther Comprehensive income for the period,

In the case of debt instruments classified as available-for-sale the Group assesses individually
whether there is objective evidence of impairment based on the samae criteria as financial assets
carried at amonised cost. However, the amount recorded for impairment is the cumulative loss
measured as the difference between the amortised cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income. Future interest income is based on the reduced carrying amount,

If in a subsequent period the fair value of a debt instrument increases and the increase can be
objectively related to a credit event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive income, the impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.

6.13 Securities lending and borrowing

Securities lending and borrowing transactions are usually collateralized by securities or cash.
The transfer of the securities to counterparties is only reflected on the Statement of Financial
Position if the risks and rewards of ownership are also transferred. Cash advanced or received as

collateral is recorded as an asset or liabiity.

Securities borrowed are not recognized on the Statement of Financiat Position, unless they aré sold
1o third parties, in which case the obligation to return the securities is recorded as a trading liabitity
_and measured at fair value with any gains or josses included in net trading income.

6.14 Fair values

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement seeks to increase consistency and comparability in fair vatue
measurements and related disclosures through a 'fair value hierarchy'. The hierarchy categorises
the inputs used in valuation technigues into three levels. The hieraréhy gives the highest priority to
(unadjusted) quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities and the lowest priority
o unobservable inputs. The objective of a fair value measurement is to estimate the price at which
an orderly transaction o sell the asset or to transfer the liability would take place between market
participants at the measurement date under current market conditions.

The fair vajue for financial instruments traded in active markets at the reporting date is hased on
their quoted market price or dealer price quotations, without any deduction for transaction costs.
For equities traded in organized financial markets, fair value is determined by reference to Stock
Exchange guoted market clesing prices at the close of business on the reporting date.

The fair value of interest-bearing items not traded on an aclive market is estimated based on
discounted cash-flows using interest rates for items with similar remaining maturity. The carrying
value of demand deposits is considered to be the fair value,

For equities where there is no quoled market price, a reascnable estimate of the fair value is
determined by reference to the current market value of another instrument which is substantially the
same, or is based on the expected discounted cash fiows.
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Classification is based on a hierarchy that reflects the significance of unobservable inputs used in
the measurement. An analysis of fair values of financial instruments and further details as to how
they are measured are provided in Note 40,

6.15 Repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements

Assels sold with a simuitaneous commitment fo repurchase at a specified future date (repos)
continue {o be recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position and are measured in

" accordance with accounting policies for non-trading investments. The liability for amounts received

under these agreements is included in Deposits from banks. The difference between sale and
repurchase price is treated as interest expense in the respective period.

Assets purchased with a corresponding commitment to resell at a specified future date (reverse
repos) are not recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.

Amounis paid under these agreements are included in due from banks and other financiat
institutions. The difference between purchase and resale price is treated as interest income in the
respective period.

6.16 Intangible assets, property and equipment

All items of property and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Depreciation is provided on a
straight-line basis over the estimated usefut lives of all property and equipment, other than freehoid
land which is deemed to have an indefinite useful life.

The following depreciation rates and residual values are applied:

Depreciation rate Residual value
Premises 2% 30% of gross value
Leasehold improvements . 5% individually assessed
Electronic equipment's and office fumiture 14.5% individually assessed
Computer equipment 33% individually assessed
Software 20% individually assessed
Motor vehicles 20% 20% of gross value

During 2014 the residuai vaiues set up in the Accounting Policy were reviewed. As a result, the
residual value was changed from 30% to 20% in case of company cars.

Expenditure on internaily developed software is recognised as an asset when the Group is able to
demonstrate its intention and ability to complete the development and use the software in a manner
that will generate future economic benefits and can reliably measure cosis to complete the
development. The capitalised costs of internally developed software include all costs directly
attributable to developing the software and are amortised overt its useful life. Internaily developed
software is stated at capitalised cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
venefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising from de-recognition of the
asset is included in the Statement of Comprehensive income as Operating income in the year the
asset is derecognized. The assefs residual values, useful fives and methods of depreciation are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date. Lands are not subject to depreciation,

6.17 Goodwill

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is initially measured at cost heing the excess of the
cost of the business combination over the Group's interest in the net fair value of the acquirer's -
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent labiliies. Foliowing initiai recognition, goodwill is
measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
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The Group determines whether goodwiit is impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires an
estimation of the ‘value in use’ of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated.

When subsidiaries are soid, the difference between the selling price and the net assets plus
cumulative translation differences and goodwill is recognized in profit or loss.

6.18 Repossessed assets and other assets

Repossessed properties are usually repossessed under lease contracts or real estate
developments/projects or construction contracts,

The Bank Group keeps all repossessed real estates with the intent to dispose of the asset in the
reasonable short period of time, Repossessed assets shall be measured at the lower of cost and
fair value less cost to sell {FVLCTS) and shall not be amortised but only subject to the impairment
test,

Repossessed properties are derecognised when either they have been disposed or when the
repossessed property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is
expected from its disposal.

Transfers are made {0 or from repossessed property only when there is a change in use.
For a transfer from repossessed property to owner occupied property, the deemed cost for-
subsequent accounting is the fair value at the date of change in use.

Other assets are recognized at cost, which comprise all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs, The balance of other assets includes those balances which have not been disclosed
separately in the statement of financial position {e.g. trade receivables, inventories). After initial
recognition they are measured at the lower of cost and net realizabile value.

" 6.19 Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are measurad at the lower of
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if
their carrying amounts will be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through continuing
use. This condition is regarded and met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset is
avaitable for immediate sale in its present condition. Management must be committed to the sale,
which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the
date of classification. Property, equipment and intangible assets once classified as held for sale are
not depreciated or amortised.

6.20 Deposits from banks and from customers

All money market and customer deposits are initially recognized at fair value. After initial
recognition, all interest bearing deposits, other than liabilities held for trading, are subsequently
measured at amortized cost:

The amortized cost of a financial asset or liability is the amount at which the financial asset or
lizbility is measured at initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumutative
amortization using the effective interest method of any difference between the initial amount

‘recognized and the maturity amount, minus any reduction for impatrment.

For liabilities carried at amortized cost, any gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss when the
liability is derecognized.

. 6.21 Liabilities from issued securities

Financial instruments issued by the Group — other than deposits from banks and customers - that
are not designated at fair value through profit or loss, are classified as Liabilites from issued
securities, where the substance of the contractual arrangement results in the Group having an
obligation to deliver cash to the holder. After initial measurement liabitities from issued securities
are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
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6.22 Revenue recognition

. Revenue is recognized to the extent that is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue can be reliably measured.

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost and interest bearing financial instruments
classified as available-for-gale financial investments and financlal instruments designated at fair
value through profit or loss, interest income or expense is recorded using the effective interest rate,
which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate to the net carrying
amount of the financiai asset or financial lability. The Group earns fee and commission income
from a diverse range of services it provides to its customers,

Fees earned for providing services over a period of time - such as servicing fee, account turnover
fae, card fee, invesiment services fee, documentary fee and cash management fee - are accrued
over that period. Fees arising from negotiating or participating in the negotiation of a transaction for
a third party are recognized on corapletion of the underlying transactions. Fees or components of
fees that are linked fo a certain performance are recognized after fulfilling the corresponding
criteria. Loan syndication fees are racognized in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income when the syndication has been completed and the Bank retains no part of the loans for
itself or retains part at the same effective interest rate as for the other participants.

' .Dividend income is recognised when the Group's right to receive the payment is established,

Results arising from frading activities include all gains and losses from changes in fair value and
related inferest income or expense and dividends for financial assets and liabilities held for trading.
This includes any ineffectiveness recorded in hedging transactions.

6.23 Taxation

Current tax assets and fiabilifies for the current and prior years are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the tax authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Local business fax and innovation contribution are both revenue driven taxes, thus considered
income tax.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between the fax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for the financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax
liabilittes are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

+  Where the deferred tax iiahility arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or
liabifity in a transaction that is not a husiness combination and at the fime of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

) In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, where
the iming of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable fulure.

. Deferred tax assets are recognised for ail deductible temporary differences, carry forward of
unused fax credits and unused tax losses, {0 the extent that is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry forward for
unused fax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

»  Where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and at the
time of transaction affects neifther the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss,

. In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are recognised only fo the extent that it is probabile that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future; and faxable profit witl be available against
which the temporary differences can be utifised.
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(6} Significant accounting policies (continued)

" The carrying amount of deferred tax assels is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit wili be available to allow all or part of
‘the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Recognised and unrecognised deferred tax assets are

- ‘reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probab%e

“that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

" Deferred tax assets and liabitities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to appiy in the
~'year when the asset is realised or the liability is seffied, based on the tax rates (and tax laws} that
"have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,

Current tax and deferred tax items are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income as Income tax expense. . .

‘Deferred tax asset and deferred tax liabilities are offset if legally enforceable rights exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax iiabilities and the deferred taxes relates to the same taxable
“entity and the same tax authority.

Bank tax

in August 2010 the Hungarian Parliament approved a new Act called the “bank tax". The tax

remained in place also in 20115 based on a modification at the Law. Each financial insfitution that

-already had a closed financial year and related financiai statements on 1 July 2010 was subject to '

- . assessment and payment of this the bank tax in 2010. On 15 November 2010 the Hungarian

. Pariiament approved an amendment to the Bank Tax Act applicable for 2011. The amendment
-practically splits into two payment tities the originat bank tax payment obligation for banks aniy.

The basis and the rate of the new bank tax that establishes the tax payable was different for the
different types of financial institutions (in case of banks it is calculated on the adjusted balance
sheet total, in case of financial enterprises - such as leasing companies - it is based on the net
interest income and net commission income and in case of investment fund management
companies on the total net asset value of the funds managed, eic.). From 2012 net interest income
and net commission income can be netted from bank tax point of view at leasing companies.

For 2015 and 2014 the basis and rates are uniformiy hased on statutory reporied financiaf data of -
the reporting entity for the period ended 31 December 2008,

The respective tax rates for 2014 were different for the types of financial institutions: g.g. for credit
institutions the tax rates were 0.15% of adiusted totai asset value for the first HUF 50 billion;
and 0.53% had been applied for the amount exceeds HUF 50 biilion. For ieasing companies 6.5%
had been applied for the net of net interest income and net commission income.

Bank tax is presented as operating exbehse in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income -as it does not meet the definition of income tax under IFRS and presented on a separate
line on the face of the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive income,

Financial Transaction Duty

Financial Transaction Duty Act came into effect from 1 January 2013 as a new faxation duty. From
1 January 2013 to 31 July 2013 the transaction duty rate was 0.2% of the transaction amount,
~ except cash withdrawal transactions, where 0.3%, but capped at HUF 6,000 per withdrawal
. transaction.
On 27 June 2013 the Parliament approved a modification of the Act that included the increase of
the financiat transaction duty rate. In case of cash transactions duly was increased from 0.3% to
-0.6% and the HUF 6,000 per withdrawal transaction cap was abolished, while the 0.2% rate
increased to 0.3% and the HUF 6,000 cap remained. The revised duty rates come into force from
.1 August 2013,

Financial transaction duly is presented as operating expense in the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income,

6.24 Offsetting financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Consolidated

Statement of Financial Positien when there is a legaily enforceable right to set off the recognized
_amounts and there is an intention {o setlie on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the liability
© simuitaneously.
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-(6) Significant accounting policies (continued)

6.25 Fiduciary assots

Assets hetd in trust or in & fiduciary capacity are not treated as assets of the Groue and accordingly
are not included in these Consolidated Financial Statements.

6.26 Financial guarantees

In the ordinary course of business, the Group provides financial guarantees consisting of ietters of
credit, letters of guarantees and acceptances. Financial guarantees are initially recognized in the
Financial Statements at fair value, and the fair value is recognized in other liabilities.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group's liabilittes under such guarantees are each measured

at the higher of the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle any financial obligation

arising as a result of the guarantee and the amount recognized less cumuiative amortization. Any

change in the fair vaiue relating to financial guarantees is taken to the Consolidated Statement of
- Comprehensive Income. . :

6.27 Provisions

‘Provisiens are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
" result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embeodying economic benefits
will be required to setile the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the

obligation.

When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is
recognized as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense
relating to any provision is presented in the Statement of Comprehensive income net of any
reimbursement.

6.28 Operating profit

Operating profit represents profit from business'operations and is defined as profit before tax
connected fo non-financial operations.

6.29 Empioyee benefits ~ Share based payment transactions

The fair value of the amount payable to employess in respect of share appreciation rights is
recognised as an expense with a corresponding increase in liabilities over the period that the
empioyees become uncenditionaily entitted to payment. The liability is remeasured at each
reporting date and at settlement date based on the fair value of the share appreciation rights. Any
changes in the liability are recognised as personnel expenses in Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income,

For share-based payment awards with non-vesting conditions the grant—date fair value of the share-
. based payment is measured to reflect such conditions and there is no {rue-up for differences
hatween expected and acfual outcomes.

6.30 Government measures related fo consumer loan contracts

{a) Act on Settlement _
In accordance with the Act XL, of 2014 {Act on Seltlement)) in case of HUF mortgage loans are
assumed unfair charged, have been settled with clients during 2015 in relation to that.

(b) Act on Conversion into HUF

Based on the Act LXXVIH of 2014 on “Settlement of certain issues concerning the modification of
the currency and interest conditions retated to consumer loan agreements” the Bank completed the
conversion of foreign currency consumer morigage loans and refating amounts (accrued interests,
provision for impairment} info HUF.
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(6} Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c} Conversion of foreign currency denominated consumer loans into HUF

On August 2015 the Hungarian government and the Hungarian Banking Association reached an
agreement on the conversion of foreign currency denominated car loans and consumer loans into
HUF. Accordingly, the applicable exchange rates were the spol market rates on 19 August 2015,
However, based on the agresment a subsidy was given to clients: the difference between the
FX rates used for the conversion of £X mortgage loans and the 19 August 2015 spot FX rates will
be bome equally by the banks and the state. From the clients' point of view the conversion is not
mandatory,

Settlement and conversion process was conducted during 2015, which resulted in the recognition of

- settlement and conversion {gross) amount of HUF 78,338 million far the Group. The gross amount
was compensated by the matured unrecovered customer outstanding's (e.g. penaity interest,
reversal of provisions) following the coflection order established in the Settlement Law.

6.31 Standards issued but not yet effective

Standards issued buf not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the Group's Financial
Statements are listed below. The list contains standards and interpretations issued and expected to
be relevant to the Group and to be adopted when they become effective.

IFRS 9 Financial instruments

IFRS 9 published in July 2014 replaces the. existing guidance in IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Mesasurement. IFRS @ includes revised guidance on the classification and
measurement of financial instruments, including a new expected credit loss model for calculating
impairment on financial assets, and the new generat hedge accounting requirements. It also carries
forward the guidance on recognition and derecognition of financial instruments from {AS 39.

IFRS 9 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,

The Group is assessing the potentially significant impact on its consolidated financial statements
resulting from the application of IFRS 9. .

iIFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, now much and when
revenue is recognized. It replaces existing revenue recognition guidance, including 1AS 18 Revenue
and IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Prograrmmes.

IFRS 15 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.

1AS 1 Presentation of financial stafements

The Group expects that the amendments, when initially applied, will not have a materiai impact on
the presentation of the financial statements of the Group, :
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Part B ~ Information on the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income '

(7} Interest income and interest expense

(miflion HUF) 2015 2014
Interest from customers 40,1563 58,807
Interest income from financial investments —Available-for-sale 1,437 4,443
Interest from banks 4,317 3,277
Interest income from firanciat investments ~Held-to-maturity - 45
Subtotal ' 45,907 66,572
Interest from financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss 1,100 825
Total interest income 47,007 67,307

Low demand for new financing over the past years caused the continuous erosion of the Group's
customer foan portfolio, while the change in regulatory environment had a negative impact on
consumer loan spreads. This together with the increasing propertion of non performing loans
resulted in a drop of interest income.

{million HUF) 2015 2014
Interest paid to customers 12,753 19,605
Interest paid fo banks 2,820 3,775
interest paid on issued securities 1,815 3,986
Total interest expenses 17,488 27,368

Interest expense related fo financial liabilities not carried at fair value through profit and loss
amounis HU¥ 17,234 milion as at 31 December 2015 and HUF 27,138 million in 2014,
respectively.

{8) Fee and commission income and expense

(million HUF) . 2015 2014
Servicing fee income for loans 5,432 6,198
Account turnover fee income 10,582 12,033
Card fee income 4,902 5,562
Investment services fee income 5,202 4,346
Documentary fee income 1,224 1,199
Cash management fee income 1,545 1,766
Agent fee income 698 836
Other fee income 2675 2,503
mTotal fee and commission income 32,260 34,243
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(8)- Fee and commission income and expense (continued)

{million HUF) ' 2015 2014
Card fee expense 2,466 2,501
Account furnover fee expense - 582 494
Investment services fee expense 207 183
Documentary fee expense 313 199
Servicing fee expenses for loans 32 36
Agent fee expense 39 91
Other fos expense -~ 835 1,295
" Total fee and commission expenses 4,474 4,799

(3) Income from trading activities

{million HUF) 2015 2014
?{l}?; ii;r:{?:tjr?ugﬁgi gsasn/(loss) from derivatives and trading with (7,132) . 7.932
Net realised gain/{loss) from derivatives _ t 3,515 5,236
Net revaluation gain/{loss) on hedging instruments (9) 8
Net revaluaticn gain/{loss) from trading with financial assets 85 30
through profit or loss

Net realised gain/(loss) from trading with financial assets through 125 490
profit or loss

Net gain from financial investments — Available-for-sale 19 203
Total (3,397) 13,899

Change in market conditions and regufatory environment had a significant effect on the structure of
the Group's assef portfolio, impacting the Group's financing activities in parallel, which indicated a
significant change on the FX resuit.

In addition to that, the unrealised revaluation gain connected to the derivative portfolic was also
lower than during the comparing period.

{10) Other operating income and expense

{million HUF) ‘2015 2014
Net {osses from selling of tangible and intangible assets (5) {5)
Dividend and similar income 4 3
Resuit on disposal of inventories 78 {121)
Income from property management ' 1,679 2,247
Net resuit on non-current asset held for sale 1,827 (125)
Additional income on foan portfolio 1,522 -
Other operating income / (expenditures) 749 869
Total 5,854 2,868
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{11} impairment losses, provisions and net loan losses

{million HUF) _ 2015 2014
Individual impairment for loan losses ' ' 32,673 43,490
-Collective impairment for loan losses 3,237 {2,008)
Impafrment fosses on loans subtotal 35,810 41,482
f:i{loan losses and provision according to the Loan Settlement (5,231) 70.205
Net loan losses and provision according to the Loan
Settlement Law subtotal (5,231) 70,205
Provision expensef(reversal} for financiat guarantees (955} (182)
Provision expense/(reversat} for other commitments and :
cantingencies (2.872) (323)
Result on sale of loans . {568) 2,235
Net fosses on repossessed properties : 2,921 3,425
Other impairment losses for other receivables 19 970
Other provision expensesf/(reversal) 2,019 740
Other impairment losses and provisions 564 6,865
~ Total 31,243 118,552

(12) Operating expenses without bank tax

{million HUF) 2018 2014
Personne! expenses ' 23,835 23,066

a, Salaries ' 16,662 16,017

b, Other benefits 1,493 1,498

¢, Social contributions ' 5,780 5,551
Depreciation 4,534 5,853
Office and infermation Technology maintenance ' 5,872 5,936
Financial fransaction duty 4,288 4,634
Other taxes and obligatory fees 4,258 4,128
Material expenses 1,852 2,118
Rent and leasing 2,979 2,167
Communications 1,820 2,295
Advertising 1,232 1,968
Expert fees 174 139
Other expenses 2966 4178
Total 53,810 56,480
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(13} Bank tax
The faliowing table illustrates the bank tax obligation of the Group in 2015 and in 2014,

fn?i'ﬁ'iﬁi"ﬁ UF) 2015 2014
CiB Bank Ltd. ' 11,384 11,384
CiB Leasing Co. Ltd. 420 420
-CiB Real Estate Leasing 1.td. 51 ' 51
CiB Factor Lid. 48 48
Total 11,903 11,903

(14) Income tax benefit / (expense)

The cumrent income tax expense is based on the corporate income tax payable on the resulls for
the year determined in accordance with Hungarian accounting and taxation rules,

The corporate income tax rate of 18% applicable to all Group companies but dependent from the
tavel of profitability the tax rate has been reduced to rate of 10% of the amouni of profit before tax,
If the tax base of a company is below HUF 500 million the corporate income tax rate is 10%. If the
tax base of a company is above this amount the corporate income tax rate is 19% for the part of the
profit above HUF 500 miition,

For deferred tax calculation purposes the Group applied the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realised or the Hability is settled

{million HUF) : 2015 2014
Current income tax charge ' (3,199) (3,730}

A, Corporate Income fax {130} {386)

B, Local business fax (2,664} (2,919)

C, Innovation contribution {405} {425)
Deferred income tax ' 169 283
Total income tax benefit / (expense) (3,030) {3,447)
{million HUF) 2015 2014
Origination and reversal of temporary differences . 169 283
Total deferred income tax 169 283
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: {14} Income tax benefit / (expense) (continued)

2014

Reconcliiation of income tax (million 2015 (million
1
expense to profit before tax " HUF) of HUF) %
Profit before tax (37,194} (100,693)
Theoretical income tax expense at the 0 ¢ )
statutory rate {7,067} 19.00% {19,132) 19.00%
Tax base amending items aecerdlng to ' o
the local reguiations (11,352) 31% 14,327 (14.00%}
Use of deferred losses (115) 0.31% (323) 0.32%
Non-deductible provision 84 (0.23%) 293 (0.29%)
Non-deductible expenditure (11,321) 30.44% 14,356 (14.26%}
Effect of applying tax rate of 10% 90 (0.24%) 105 (0.10%)
Not recognised tax asset 18,290 {49.17%) 4,803 (4.77%)
Cther income fype taxes 3,069 (8.25%) 3,344 (3.32%)
Income tax at effective tax rate 3,030 (8.15%) 3,447 (3.42%)
‘Deferred tax assets and fiabilities 2015 2014
comprise
(miiIiF:Jn HUF) Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Loans 26 167 - 265
Leasing 166 158 740 746
Properties - 412 - 421
Securities at fair value - 28 - 10
" Other assets and liabilities 9 52 10 107
Total deferred tax to profit or loss 201 817 750 1,549
Deferred tax recognised in OCI - -
Total 201 817 750 1,549

The management assessed whether sufficient taxable profit will be available at some of the entities
in the Group to allow the benefit of all deferred tax asset to be utifised and decided to derecognize
the deferred tax asset as at 31 December 2015 at those companies where the profitability of the
entity in the near foreseeable future is doubtful or uncertain.

In 2013 the Group made impairment on deferred tax asset in refation to carry forward tax losses
previously recognized in the Consolidated Financial Statements,

Deferred tax asset is not recognized on the balance of carry forward unused tax losses; which
amount was HUF 358,507 million as at 31 December 2015 and HUF 348,284 million as at

31 December 2014.
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(15} Dividend paid

There wers no dividends, declared or paid in either 2015 of 2014,

(16) Other comprehensive income

Net non-realised (loss) / gain on available-for-sale financial assets (net of taxes) and income from

transaction under comman control are as follows:;

2014

(million HUF) 2015

Net gains/{losses) from changes in fair value 3,276 28
. Amortization of AFS securities 8 208

Net non-reafised (loss) / gain on available-for-sale financial

assets (net of taxes) 3,284 236

Total 3,284 - 236

Share classified as non-current assets held for sale were valued at fair value as at 31 December
2015, which resulted the recognition of HUF 3,166 million non realized gains through other
comprehensive income. This fair value adjustment is based on the price offer received for the

{ransfer of the shares.
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(17} Cash and current accounts with central bank

Cash and current accounts with the central bank comprise notes and coins of various currencies
and nostro accounts with the central bank kept in Hungarian Forint. The Bank is required to
maintain a minimum average halance as a restricted deposit for the month equivatent to 2% of the
Bank's total resident customer deposits, foreign customer HUF and currency (less than one year)
deposits with the Nationai Bank of Hungary, both in 2015 and 2014 respectively.

{million HUF} . 2015 2014
Cash ' , 9,663 9,076
Current HUF account with the Nationat Bank of Hungary 13,596 18,259
Total 23,259 27,335

(included cash and cash equivalents Note 41)

Compulsory reserve set by the National Bank of Hungary 9,663 9,076

{18) Due from banks

{million HUF) 2015 2014
Foreign currency nostro accounts 9,504 16,352
Due from banks 469,881 286,505
included in cash and cash equivalents {Note 41) 479,385 302,857
Total 479,385 302,857

(19) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

{million HUF) 2015 2014
Hungarian Government securities — HUF 2,690 33
Included in cash and cash equivalents (Note 41) 2,690 33
Hungarian Government securifies -~ HUF 56,660 12,044
Hungarian Government securities — NON-HUF 177 168
Bank and corporate bonds — HUF 11 48
Shares iisted on stock exchange — HUF : 83 158
Shares listed on stock exchange — NON-HUF 1 25
Total 59,622 12,476

Financial asset at fair value through profit or foss includes only financial assets classified as held for
trading. The Group has not designated financial assets as fair value through profit or loss upon
initial recognition,
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(19) Financial assets at falr vaiue through profit or loss (continued)

Income from egquily investments and other non-fixed incorme instruments is recognized in other
operating income.
{20} Loans and advances to customers

Analysis by sector

“The gross loan portfolio may be analyzed by sector as follows:

_ 2015 : 2014
Sector HH il
| mien % W %
Private customers 334,918 30.62 388,780 29.03
Real estate investments 240,385 21.98 289,560 21.82
Other, mostiy service industries : 189,787 17.35 212,797 15.89
Trading 67,768 6.20 104,353 7.79
Transportation and communication 45,935 4.20 79,237 5.92
Financial activities : 28,532 2.61 - 51,208 382
Agricutture 49,848 456 55,972  4.18
Light industry 39,183 3.58 . 46,467 3.47
Heavy industry 32,278 2.95 35,126 2.62
Food processing 44,008 4.03 41,109 2.98
Chemicals and pharmaceuticals 21,069 1.93 34,573 2.58

Total 1,003,801 100.0 1,339,180 100.0

The teasing subsidiaries of the Bank operate in the domestic teasing market and provide finance
lease products to cusfomers.

The following tables indicate the key amounts of this activity for the not past due receivables as at
31 December of the year. : '

{million HUF) 2015 2014
Future minimum lease payments:

Within one year 33,629 37.802
One to five years 51,589 . 62,703
More than five years 21,787 27,000
Total 107,005 127,505
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{20} Loans and advances to customers (continued)

comprise 2018 2014
(miienWUFy ' '

- Within one year _ 29,474 32,086
One to five years 45,226 ' 53,938
Maore than five years 18,590 22,018
Total 93,290 108,042
Unearned finance lease income 13,715 19,463
Accumulated allowance for uncollectible minimum lease 8,270 12,213

payments receivable

The term of the leasing contracts are usuatly between 3 months and 10 years except in the case of
some machinery contracis and property feasing contracts where the duration may reach 35 years
or in some cases more. -

Allowarice for loan losses comprise

(million HUF) 2015 2014
Opening balance 277,758 349,736
increase of allowance during the year 187,219 174,978
Decrease of allowance during the year _ (256,045) {206,500)
Write-off {25,335} {40,4586)
Closing balance 183,597 277,758
Allowance for loan losses comprise

(miltion HUF) 2015 2014
Individual allowance 162,409 252,132
Collective allowance 21,188 25,626
Total 183,597 277,758

The revaluation gain on loans specified as hedged items was HUF 312 million as af
31 December 2015 and HUF 492 million as at 31 December 2014, respectively. The fiquidation
value of collaterat that the Group holds refating to loans at 31 December 2015 amounis to
HUF 902,862 million and HUF 1,173,159 million as at 31 December 2014 respectively.

As at 31 December 2015 the Group has active repurchase agreement with an amount of
2,273 million HUF. As at 31 December 2014 the Group has active repurchase agreement with an
amount of 404 million HUF, '
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-. {21) Other assefs

{million HUF) 2015 2014
Accrued incomes, costs and expenses . 782 893
Settlement accounts 235 578
Trade receivables 1,670 1,387
Inveniories : 1,912 1,233
Other assels 657 947
Total 5,256 5,038

{22) Financial investments - Available-for-sale

{million HUF) 2015 2014
Government securities — HUF - 37,756
Included in cash and cash equivalents (Note 41) - 37,756
Government securities - HUF 78,386 44 867
Gov_ernment securities — NON-HUF - 100,147
Shares listed on stock exchange — NON-HUF 490 -
Equity investment — HUF ' 23 23
Total 78,809 182,793

{23) Repossessed properties

{miilion HUF) 2015 2014
Opening balance . - 86,199 95,953
Additions ' 10,775 20,064
" Sales {25,666) {18,150)
Net loss from impairment charges (3,558) {6,931)
Qther changes - {4,737)
Closing balance : 67,750 86,199

Repossessed properties are located in several regions"in Hungary, the closing batance includes
HUF 28,973 million properiies lccated in Budapest as at 31 December 2015, while it was
HUF 35,438 million as at 31 December 2014. .
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- (24) Intangible assets and goodwill

- At 31 December 2015 and 2014 intangible assets and the related accumulated depreciation
comprised the following

: ~ Cost of Intangible assets
* (mitlion HUF) _ Other

2018 changes Disposals Additions 2014

Software  licenses  and
 development 41,572 18 - 3,143 38,413
-Goodwil} 833 - - - 833
Other 712 - 1 - 713
43,117 16 1 3,143 39,959

_ Total

~ (mitlion HUF)

Depreciation / Impairment of intangible assets

Other

2015 changes Disposals  Increase 2014
‘Software  licenses  and : ' '
development 33,903 (20} 1 1,976 31,948
Goodwill 56 - - - 56
Other 655 - 1 7 649
 Total 34,614 (20) 2 1,983 32,653
Cost of intangible assets
{million HUF} : Other .. : .
2014 changes Disposals Additions 2013
Software  licenses  and
development 38,413 {852) 2 3,749 35,518
Goodwil} 833 - - - 833
Other 713 & 1,371 - 2,085
Total 39,959 (853) 1,373 3,749 38,436
Depreciation / impairment of intangible assets
{milllon HUF) Other ..
. 2014 changes Disposals tncrease _2013
Software  licenses  and
development 31,948 - - 2,727 29,221
Goodwill 56 - - - 56
- Other 649 {1 202 18 834
Total (1) 30,111

32,653

202 2,745
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(24)

(25)

Intangible assets and goodwill (continued}
Net book value of intangible assets
(million HUF) _ : 2015 2014
Net book vaiue of intangible assets ' 7,670 6,465
- Goodwill 777 777
Other 57 84
Total 8,504 7,306

The goodwill concerns to the purchase of CIB Factor Ltd. in 2004. The Group appiied an
impairment test on goodwill and other intangible assets, whether the carrying amount is less than
its value in use. The value in use calcuiation is based on a discounted cash flow mode! with a
discount rate of 11.42% and a growth rate of 0%. The cash flows are derived from the budget for
the next 4 years. Based on the impairment test the value in use of the goodwill is higher than its’
carrying amount,

Software licenses and developments have de'ﬁni:e fife. The amount of intemally developed software
is HUF 2,910 million as at 31 December 2015 and HUF 2,527 million as at 31 December 2014,
respectively.

Property and equipment

At 31 Dacembar 2015 and 2014 property and equipment and the related accumuiated depreciation
comprised the following:

Cost of property and equipment

{milion HUF} Other .
2015 changes Disposals Additions 2014
Land, premises 20,811 {1,492) 219 67 22,455
Leasehold improvements 6,308 - 654 36 6,926
Electronic equipment and :
office fumiture 9,815 {197} 829 286 10,555
Computer equipment 7,572 42 1,367 215 8,692
Motor vehicles 500 " 88 ' - 588
Cther 121 - - - 121
Total 45,127 (1,647) 3,157 604 49,327

Depreciation of property and equipment
{million HUF) Other

2015 changes Disposals Increase 2014
Land, premises 8,623 (984) 114 847 6,874
{.easehold improvements 5,289 {2} 654 583 5,362
Electronic eguipment and
office furniture 8928 {104) 774 475 9,331
Computer equipment 6,886 3 1,366 594 7,655
Motor vehicles 329 2 71 26 372
Other ' - - - - -
Total 28,055 (1,085} 2,979 2,525 29,594
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"(25) Property and equipment {continued)

Cost of property and equipment

* (million HUF) Other ..
2014 changes Disposals Additions 2013
" Land, premises 22,455 (61) 3,852 124 25,944
Leasehold improvements 6,026 52 517 16 7,375
Electronic equipment and
office furmiture 10,555 (73) 567 123 11,072
Computer equipment 8,682 18 530 159 9,035
" Motor vehicles 588 (168) 172 - 928
Other 121 - - - 121
“Total 49,327 (232) 5,338 422 54,475
Depreciation of property and equipment
{million HUF) Other '
2014 changes Disposals Increase 2013
Land, premises 6,874 {20} 3,551 4686 9,979
Leasehold improvements 5,362 24 - 517 1,006 4,849
Electronic equipment and
office fumiture 9,331 {94) 529 664 9,290
Computer equipment 7,655 (58) 530 897 7,346
Mator vehicles 372 - 121 66 427
Other - - - - e
Total 29,594 {148} 5,248 3,099 31,891
_Net hook value of property and équipment )
{million HUF) 2015 2014
Land, premises 14,188 15,581
Leasehotd improvements 1,019 1,564
Flectronic equipment and office furniture 887 1,224
Computer equipment 686 1,027
Motor vehicles 171 216
Other 121 121
Total 17,072 19,733
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2015

(26) Deposits from banks

{mitlion HUF) . 2018 2014
Deposits from banks in Hungary 64,992 35,634
Deposits from banks in other countries 94,129 135,136
Deposits from National Bank of Hungary 65,907 42,885
Total ' 225,029 213,655

- from which related party : 16,299 20,656

{27} Deposits from customers

{million HUF) 2015 2014
Deposits from customers in Hungary 1,151,583 1,039,657
Deposits from customers in other countries 28,123 75,083
Total 1,179,706 1,114,740

- from which related patily ) 58 48,575

The revaluation loss on deposits spebiﬁed as hedged items was HUF 0,5 million as at
31 December 2015 and the revaluation gain on deposits specified as hedged items was
HUF 210 million as at 31 December 2014 respectively.

{28} Liabilities from issued securities

{million HUF) 2015 2014
Gross amount of issued securities 62,413 125,099
Repurchased amount of issued securities {35,068) (38,992) -
Revaluation due to fair vatue hedges - 4

- Accrued interest payable from the net amount of issued securities . 817 5,307
Net amount of liabilities from issued securities 28,162 91,410

The resuit from repurchase of issued secuwrities was HUF 66 million as at 31 December 2015
and HUF 316 million as at 31 December 2014 respectively.
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CIB BANK Ltd.

and its subsidiaries

(28) Liahilities from issued securities (continued)

Issued securitles listed on the Budapest Stock Exchange
comprise the following set of securities
{million HUF)

2015

2014

CiIB  20415/A bonds were issued in HUF since
21 July 2010 and matured on 31 December 2015. The bonds pay
fix interest of 44.0% at maturity. '

CiB CL. 2015/A bonds were issued in HUF since
9 August 2012 and matured on 10 August 2015. The bonds bear
interest at 3 month BUBOR pius 100 basis points with quarteriy
interest payment.

CiB ECL 2015/A bornds were issued in EUR since
10 August 2012 and matured on 10 August 2015. The bonds
bear interest at 6 month EURIBOR plus 310 basis points with
half-yearly interest payment.

CIB FIX 15A bonds were issued in HUF since
-3 February 2012 and matured on 3 February 2015. The bonds
pay fix interest of 44%.

CiIB CL 2015/B bonds were issued in HUF since
4 February 2013 and matured on 6 February 2015, The honds
bear interest at 3 month BUBOR plus 30 basis points with
quarterly interast payment.

CIB CLE 2016/A bonds were issued in EUR since
7 May 2013 and will mature on @ May 2016. The bonds bear
interest at 6 month EURIBOR plus 220 basis points with half-
yearly inferest payment.

CiIB EFIX 15/A bonds were issued in EUR since
3 May 2013 and matured on B May 2015. The bonds bear
interest at 2.5% with annual interest payment,

CIB CL 2015/C bonds were issued in HKHUF since
16 July 2013 and matured on 20 July 2345, The bonds bear
interest at 3 month BUBOR + 0.3% with quarterly interest
payment.

CiIB CL 2015/D bonds were issued in HUF since
15 Qctober 2013 and matured on 26 October 2015, The bonds
bear inferest at 3 month BUBOR + 0.4% with quarterly interest
payment. e

CIB EFIX 16/A bonds were issued in EUR since
25 Qctober 2013 and will mature on 25 QOctober 2016. The bonds
pay fix interest of 2.75% annually.

CiIB FIX 16/B bonds were issued in HUF since
8 August 2013 and wilt mature on 30 December 2016. The bonds
pay fix interest of 16% at maturity,

CIB 2018/B bonds were issued In  HUF since
8 August 2013 and will mature on 28 December 2018, The bonds
pay fix interest of 30.0% at maturity.

CIB CL 2016/A bonds were issued in HUF since
6 June 2014 and wili mature on 7 Jung 2016. The bonds bear
interest at 3 month BUBOR pius 30 basis points.

7,843

5,776

4,380

2,436

3,282

6,759

10,444

6,359

12,690

7,908

7,820

4,790

4,006

14,036

5,800

4,016

2,244

1,687
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2015

CIB BANK Ltd.
and its subsidiaries

(28) Liabilities from issued securities {continued)

Jssued securifles listed on the Budapest Stock Exchange

comprise the following set of securities 2018 2014

{milllon HUF)

CIB E FIX 17/A bonds were issued in HUF since

18 July 2014 and will mature on 18 July 2017. The bonds pay fix - 1,598 1,029

interest of 1.75% annually.

CiIB E 2FIX 16/A bonds were issued in HUF since

18 July 2014 and will mature on 8 July 2016. The bonds pay fix 1,801 1,208

interest of 1.5% annually.

CiB C LE 17/A bonds were ‘issued in HUF since

17 September 2014 and will mature on 1037 618

18 Seplember 2017, The bonds bear interest at '

6 month EURIBOR plus 110 basis points.

CiB Kincsem bonds 8 8

Total 28,162 91,410
{29) Other liabilities

{million HUF) 2015 2014

Accrued liabilities 7,923 3,245

Settlement accounts 4,695 1,169

Suppliers 3,321% 3,246

Financial guarantees 889 1,836

Other liabilities 1,782 1,205

Total 15,610 10,701

The balance of settlement accounts contains those items in transit which are unsettled as at period

end.

Financial guarantees comprise

{miltion HUF) 2015 2014
Opening balance 1,836 1,983
Increase during the year 269 822
Decrease during the year (1,216) {969)
Closing balance 889 1,836
Concerning Financial guarantees see Note 34 on Commitments and contingencies.
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_for the year ended 31 December 2015

(30) Provisions

_ Commit-
2015 ments and
{million HUF} contingen- Other Total
cles
Opening balance 4,583 32,631 37,214
Increase of provision during the year 1,414 9,685 11,099
Decrease of provision during the year (4,278) (38,400} (42,678)
‘Closing balance ' 1,721 3,916 5,637
Commit-
2014 ments and
{million HUF) contingen- Other Total
" cles
Opening balance 4,877 2,098 6,975
Increase of provision during the year 1,009 31,654 32,663
Decrease of provision during the year (1,303) {1,121) {2,424}
Closing balance 4,583 32,631 37,214

" Provisions for commitment and contingences were created for future credit obligations (see also
Note (34) on Commitments and contingencies). All of the provisions expected to incur cost over one

year.

Other provision established to cover the Group’s present legal or constructive abligation that can be
estimated reliably and it is probable that an ouiflow of economic benefits wili be required to settle
the obligation. Other provision includes the Group's future obligations refating fo rationalising the

branch network.

Other provisions includes provision on personal type expenses, and as at 2014 the provision made
on Settiement Law based on our best available estimation.
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and its subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2015

{31) Subordinated debt

{million HUF} 2015 2014

From intesa Bank Ireland ple. for 30 million EUR. The debt's
expiry date is 26 November 2021 with interest payable at 9,397 9,452
3 months EURIBOR plus 0.37%.

From Infesa Sanpaolo S.P.A for 150 milion EUR. The debt's

expiry date is 23 December 2019 with interest payable at 47,024 47,288
3 moenths EURIBOR plus 4.06%.

Total : 56,421 56,740

In the event of the winding-up of the issuer, the above liabilities would be subordinated to the claims
of depositors and all other creditors of the issuer.

(32) Share capital
During 2015 the authorized share capital was decreased by HUF 95,000,000,008 for the purpose to
increase the Capital reserve.

During 2014 the authorized share capital was increased by HUF 3 by Intesa Sanpaolo S.p.A.
through the issuing of 3 ordinary shares of HUF 1 each.

At 31 December 2015 the fully paid share capital consisted of 50,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
HUF 1 each.

At 31 December 2014 the fully paid share capital consisted of 145,000,000,008 ordinary shares of
HUF 1 each.’

There were no significant incremental costs directly attributable fo the issue of shares 2015 and
2014,

{33) Reserves

Capital reserve

During 2015 Capital reserve was increased by HUF 95,000,000,008 as a resuit of the Capitai
decrease.

Capital reserve contains the sharehofders total capital contributions that connecting {o the issue of
new shares, The difference between the face value of the new shares and the paid capital
contribution is recognized in the capital reserve in the amount of HUF 67,000 milion during 2014.

Revaluation reserve
Revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for-sale
financial agsets, until the assets are derecognised or impaired.

Other reserve

Other reserve comprises the additional payment by shareholders to cover financial losses in the
amount of HUF 36,000 million as at 31 December 2013. Other reserve comprises the Group's
income from transacticn under common control in the amount of HUF 4,164 million. These reserves
are non-disfributable as dividends. In addition to the above other reserve includes proceed received
on sale of loan porifolio fo the shareholder in amount of HUF 49,137 million.

According 1o the three year business plan no repayment obligation arises on the additionatl
payment.
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CIB BANK Ltd.
and its subsidiaries

- Notes to the Consclidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2015

{34) Commitments and contingencies

The Bank had the following commitmehts and contingent liabilities as at 31 December

2015 Gross Other Provision
" (miltion HUF) amount liabitity

Guarantees 33,530 (868) -
Letters of credit 4,322 (21) -
Total financial guarantees 37,852 {889) -
Loans and overdraft facifities not dishursed 265,797 - (1.729)
Total ' 303,649 (889) {1,721}
2014 - - ' Gross Other -

(million HUF} amount liability Provision
Guarantees 39,408 (1,799) -
Letters of credit 3,578 (37) -
Total financial guarantees. 42,986 (1,836) -
Loans and overdraft facilities not dishursed 162,250 - {4,582)
Total ' 205,236 (1.836) (4,582)

Letters of credit, guarantees (including standby ifeliers of credit) commit the Bank to make
payments on behaif of customers contingent upon the failure of the customers to perform under the
terms of contract. Guaraniees and standby letters of credit carry the same credit risk as loans.
Credit guarantess can be in the form of bills of exchange or in the form of irrevocable lefters of
credit, guarantees, and endorsement liabilities from bills rediscounted.

Commitment o extend credit represenis contractual commitments to make leans and revolving
credits. Commitments generally have fixed expiry dates, or other termination clauses.

The amount of fong term commitments with maturity over one year is HUF 15,710 million as at
31 December 2015 and HUF 15,020 million as at 31 December 2014, respectively.

. The amount of the securities in custody is HUF 868,034 million at 3% December 2015 and
HUF 883,618 million at 31 December 2014, respectively.
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1 C1B BANK

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2015

CiB BANK Ltd.

and its subsidiaries

Part D — Additional Information

(38) Related Party transactions

(a} Companies (Intesa Sanpaolo Group)

For the purpose of the financial statements, related parties include alt the enterprises that directly or
indirectly through one or more intermediaries, contro! or are controlled by, or are under common
control with the reporting enterprise {this includes parents, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries),

agsociated companies and key management personnel.

Intesa Sanpaocio S.p.A /Maly, Torino/ (ultimate parent} is regarded as a related pary that has

significant control over the Bank.

. The Group alsc has entered into several transactions with companies controlled by Intesa

Sanpaolo Group.

All transactions with companies in the Intesa Sanpaole Group are conducted at market rates.

2015 ISP Group
(million HUF) Parent & mpanies Total
Assets
Cash and current accounts _ 4,750 2,380 7,130
Loans and advances to customers / Due from 164,300 1,160 165,460
banks
Financial investments 490 - 490
Derivative financial assets 1,757 4,933 6,690_
Cther assels - 985 985
Liabilities
Current accounts 113 47 160
Deposits from customers / hanks 14,930 3,268 18,198
Subordinated debt 47,024 9,397 56,421
Derivative financial liabilities 792 1,431 2,223
QOther liabilities - 33 33
Commitments
Guarantees ’ 126 8 134
Loan commitments 60,000 2 60,002
Interest rate derivatives 52,844 132,732 185,576
Currency derivatives 387,960 1,356 389,316
Equity derivatives - 58,580 58,580
Net inferest income {1,911) {286) {2,197)
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{38) Related Party transactions (continued)

2014

ISP Group

(milfion HUF) Parent ¢ mpanies Total
Assets .
Cash and current accounts 2,789 123 2,912
. Loans and advances to customers / Due from 47 471 23 47,194
banks .
Financial investments 25 - 25
Derivative financial assets 4,994 260 5,254
Other assets - 866 866
Liabilities ,
Current accounts - 179 179
Deposits from customers / banks 64,163 4,659 68,822
Subordinated debt 47,288 9,452 56,740
Derivative financial liabiities 9,809 826 10,735
Other fiabilities - 12 12
Commitments
Guarantees 126 37 163
L.oan commitments - 2 2
interest rate derivatives 335,546 42,165 377,71
Currency derivatives 785,863 432 786,295
MNet interest income {3,211) {664) (3,875)

The Group has significant transactions with the following 18P Group members:

BANCA FIDEURAM S.P.A.
PRIVREDNA BANKA ZAGRER D.D.
VSEOBECNA UVEROVA BANKA AS
BANCA {Mi SPA

INTESA SANPACLO ROMANIA S.A,

The most significant transactions with related parties are loan deposits and derivatives {foreign

exchange swap deals and interest rate swap iransactions).

(b} Key management personnel

The key management personnel, who have authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the entity, are the members of the Bank's Management Board and
Supervisory Board. They receive conditions generally provided to the employees of the CIB Group.
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for the year ended 31 December 2015

CiB BANK Lid.

and its subsidiaries

(38) Related Party transactions (continued)

~ Members of the Bank's Management Board as at 31 December 2015:

- Dr. Pal Simak (CEQ) - CiB Bank Ltd.

Giorgio Gavicli — CiB Bank Ltd.

Johann Friedrich Strohmayer — CIB Bank Ltd.
" Andrea De Michelis — CIB Bank Ltd.

Dr. Tamas Akos ~ CIB Bank Ltd.

Istvan Attila Szabt - CI8 Bank Lid.

‘Zoltén Csordéds — CIB Bank Ltd.

Paolo Vivona — CIB Bank Ltd.

Members of the Bank's Supervisory Board as at 31 December 2015:

. Ezio Salvai {Chairman)
" Christophe Velte — Intesa Sanpaoio Group
Giampiero Trevisan
Dr. Tiinde Barabés — Intesa Sanpaclo Group
Francesco Del Genio - Intesa Sanpaclo Group
Ciro Vittoria — Intesa Sanpaolo Group

‘Exposures to [ from Board members

(million HUF) 2015 2014
Assets

Loans 113 73

Shares 27 25
Liahilities

Current accounis - 210

Deposits - 42
Commitments

Loans and overdraft facilities not disbursed 7 2
Compensation

Salaries and other short-term benefits including contribution 1,228 888

paid on compensation

There were changes and extension in the Group's key management members during 2015 and

2014.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2015

(39) Average balances

Averages carrying amounts and average interest rates (where appropriate} are set out in the table
below. The amounts are calculated by using a simple average of daily balances for trading
instrumenis and monthly balances for other instruments. The average interest rates disclosed are
the weighted average effective yields of interest-bearing financial instruments for the reporting

period.
2015 2014
{million HUF) Average Average Average Average
carrying interest carrying interest
amount rate (%) amount rate (%)
Financial assets
Cash 8,085 0.00 7,848 0.00
IIggﬁcsasit with banks and subordinated 396,382 1.08 222,265 1.42
Financial assets at fair value through
- profit or loss 53,655 1.51 25,285 2.24
l.oans and advances {o customers 1,241,086 3.24 1,546,344 3.82
Financial investments 101,140 14 193,568 2,29
Other assetls 527,379 - 158,158 -
Financial liabilities
Deposits from banks : 219,998 _ 0.22 259,048 0.52
Deposits from customers 1,152,852 1.08 1,132,197 1.67
Liabifities from issued securities 60,632 4.28 08,466 4.7
Subordinated debt 55,0956 3.45 67,173 3.23

Cther liabitities 207177 - 427,719 -

{40} Fair value of financial assets and liabillties

The following fables comprise the book value and the fair value of those financial asssts and
liabilities, which are not presented at fair value in the Statement of Financial Position.

Variable rate Fixed rate
31 December 2015 instruments instruments
{million HUF) Book Falr Book Fair
value value value value
Financial assets
Due from banks 28,278 28,280 451,107 451,132
Loans and advances 10 customers 770,253 772,519 139,951 133,063
Financial liabilities
Deposits from banks 101,213 99,366 123,816 120,258
Deposits from customers 790,314 794,532 389,392 392,375
Liabilities from issued securities 12,163 12,162 15,999 16,302

Subordinated debt 56,421 58,343 - -
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and its subsidiaries

" for the year ended 31 December 2015

{40} Fair value of financial assets and labilities {continued)

Varijable rate Fixed rate
_ 31 December 2014 instruments instruments
~ {million HUF) Book Fair Book Fair
. value value value value
Financlal assets '
[ue from banks 16,355 16,355 286,502 286,510
Loans and advances to customers 952,646 974,107 108,776 102,989
Financial liabilities
Deposits from banks 143,707 444,083 69,948 66,880
Deposits from customers 687,096 692,237 427 644 430,588
Liabilities from issued securities 52,785 52,790 38,625 39,364
Subordinated debt 56,740 58,539 - -

The methods of the fair value calculations are detailed in the following paragraphs,

The estimated fair value of due from banks and loans and advances fo customers is based on the
discounted amount of the estimated future cash flows.

In the case of financial investments — Heid-to-maturity and liabilities from issued securities are
measured with the actual market price or by applying broker price quotations.

-Deposits from banks and customers have been estimated using discounted cash fiows.

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair valus of financial

instruments by valuation technique:

« Level 1: inputs that are quoted marked prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical

instruments.

s Level 2; inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable either

directly or indirectly,

¢ Levsel 3: inputs that are unobservable. This category includes all instruments for which the
valuation technique includes inputs not based on observable data and the unobservable
inputs have a significant effect on the instrument's vaiuation. Unobservable input is used for
instruments with cenditions not closely connected to active markets.

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of the

‘fair value hierarchy:

31 December 2015

(miltion HUF) Level 1 Level 2 level 3 Toftal
Financi;i-;;sets

. Derivativa financlal assets - 15,371 - 15,371
giggFgLa;oisssets at fair vaiue through 50,621 1 ) 59,622
z;rlmgnciai investments - Available-for- 78,876 ) A 78,876
Financial liabilities
Derivative financial liabilities ] 12700 - 12,709
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for the year ended 31 December 2015

CIB BANK Ltd.
and its subsidiaries

'(40) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities {continued)

31 December 2014

Total

(million HUF) Leve! 1 Level 2 Level 3

' Financial assets
Derivative financial assets - 19,599 - ' - 19,599
Eigzggirallozsssets at fair value through 12.476 ) i 12,476
::ar:gncsal investments - Available-for- 182.770 ) i 182,770
Financial liabilities
Derivative financiat liabilities _ 18486 - 18,486

During the reporting period ending 31 December 2015 and 2014 there were no transfers between
Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements or any transfers into Level 3 {air value measurement.

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments not measured at fair value by levet of

the fair value hierarchy:

Total
?':1 iﬂie :: :23:; 2015 Level 1 Levei 2 Level 3 TOti’aflzt hook
value
Financial assets
Cash and current accounts with
central bank 23,259 - - 23,259 23,259
Deposits with banks - - 479,412 479,412 479,385
Loans and advances to customers - - 905,582 905,582 910,204
Financial liabilities
Deposits from banks - - 219,624 216,624 225,029
Deposits from customers - - 1,186,907 1,186,907 1,179,706
Liabilities from issued securities - 28,464 - 28,464 28,162
Subordinated deposits - - 58,343 58,343 56,421
..... e e
31 December 2014 Total fair
oy Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 book
{million HUF) value value
Financial assets
Cash and current accounts with
central bank 27,337 - - 27,337 27,337
Deposits with banks ~ - 302,865 302,865 302,857
Loans and advances to cusiomers - 1,074,096 1,074#09_6__ 1,061,422
Financial liabilities
Deposits from banks - - 210,963 210,963 213,655
Deposits from customers - - 1,123,096 1,123,096 1,114,740
Liabilities from issued securities - 92,154 - 92:154 91,410
Subordinated deposits - - 58,539 58,539 56,740
Bank of INTESA [} S\NPAOLO
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and its subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2015

(40) Fair value of financlal assets and liabilities {continued)

Where available, the fair value of loans and advances is based on ohservable market transactions.
Whaere observahle market fransactions are not available, fair value is estimated using valuation
models, such as discounted cash flow techniques. The fair value of deposits from banks and
customers is estimated using discounted cash flow techniques. The fair value of deposits on
demand is the amount payable at the reporting date.

(41) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalent comprises the following
balances with less than three months maturity from the date of acquisition,

{million HUF) Note 2015 2014
Cash and cash equivaients 17 23,259' 27,335
Due from banks _ 18 479,385 302,857
Financial assets at fair vaiue through profit or loss 19 2,690 33
Financial investments . 22 - 37,756
Total 505,334 367,981

(42) Business combinations and transactions under common control

There was no business combination and transaction under common control in 2015 nor in 2014,

(43) Events after the reporting period

The winding up procedure of CIB Car Ltd. and Brivon Hungary Ld. commences on the
1st of January, 2016.

During February, 2016 the subordinated loan from Intes'a Sanpaole S.P.A  with
an amount of 150 million EUR will be entirely prepaid and in paraliel from this amount the
authorized share capital will be increased by issuing new shares.

{44} Segment report

For management purposes the Group is organised info operating segments based on services and
preducts. The Management Board of the Bank monitors the operating results of its business units
separately for the purpose of making decision about resource aflocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on operating profit or loss, Operating
segment result represents the banking income less of impairment loss, provision and net loan
losses. Income taxes are managed on a Group basis and are not allocated to operating segments.

The fallowing segments could be distinguished as being separate from each other

. Retail banking contains private customer current accounts, savings, deposits; customer loans
and morigages; financial leasing services

. Corporate banking contains banking services, savings, deposits, investment savings products
and corporate loans.

¢  Treasury and Bank segment contains trading and {reasury services.

« The other segment contains oth the subsidiaries whose activities are not financial and public
sector, such as property management.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2015

CiB BANK Ltd.

and its subsidiaries

'(44) Segment report (continued)

Net banking income of other segment is due to the transfer of interest on non-interest eaming asset
and liabilities classified {o the other segment category.

Geographical segments are not presented in the consolidated financial statements as the cost of

producing such information would exceed its merits.

Corpo-
o peceruer 2015 g e T oner o
Net interest income 17,487 14,684 (2,941) 3.279 29,519
Net commission income 20,717 7,069 - - 27,786
Trading income - - (3,397) - {3,397}
Other pperating income - - - 5,854 5,854
Net banking income 38,214 18,753 {6,338) 9,133 59,762
Impaiment losses, provislons and  (19,474)  (12,269) - 500 (31,243)
Segment result 18,740 6,484 {6,338) 9,633 28,519
Unallocated cost - - - - (65,713}
Profit before tax - - - - {37,194}
Income tax - - - - {3.,030)
Profit for the year - - - - (40,224}
- Segment assets

Loan and advances fo customers 342 973 567,231 - - 910,204
Deposit with banks - - 479,385 - 479,385
Securities - 138,498 23 138,521
Derivative financial assets - 15,371 - 15,371
Other assets - - - 132,025 132,025
Unallocated assets - - 20 201
Total asset 342,973 567,231 633,254 132,243 1,675,707
Segment liabilities _

Depostiom cusones oy Stoms ewae - - 420
Degost o e a S mus - e
Derivative financial liabitities - - 12,708 - 12,709
Other - - - 25,023 25,023
Unaliocated liabilities - - - 817 817
Total liabilities 510,726 697,142 294,159 25,840 1,527,867
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{44) Segment report {(continued)

Corpo-

o e 2114 S e A
. Net interest income 28,427 13,728 {5,394} 3,270 40,031
Net commission income 18,353 11,081 - - 29,444
* Trading income - - 13,899 - 13,899
Cther operating income - - B 2,668 2,868
Net banking income 46,780 24,819 8,505 6,138 86,242
Impairment losses, provisions and  (s4.962)  (28,322) - (5268) (118552)
Segment result (38,182)  (3,503) 8,505 870  (32,310)
Unallocated cost (68,383
Profit before tax (100,693}
‘Income tax : (3.447)
Profit for the year (104,140}
Segment assets ' '
Loan and advances to customers 387,187 694,265 - - 1,061,422
" Deposit with banks - - 302,857 - 302,857
Securities - - 165,246 23 195,269
Derivative financial assels - _ - 19,599 - 19,599
Other assels - - - 153,745 163,745
Unallocated assets - - - 750 750 -
Total asset 367,157 694,265 517,703 154,516 1,733,642
Segment liabilities )
B e e SOGSE SAs06 w6 12000
Degost o ks anc S wmas - oo
Derivative financial liabilities - - 18,486 - 18,486
Other - - - 52,282 52,282
~ Unallocated liabilities - - - 1,549 1,549
Total liabilities 603,932 554,606 336,493 53,831 1,548,862
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2015

Part E — Information on risks

{45} Risk management

Risk is inherent in the Group’s activities, but it is carefully managed through a process of ongoing

" identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to prudent risk limits and sfrong control. This
process of risk management is critical to the Group's continuing profitability and each individual
within the Group is accountable for the risk exposures relating to his or her responsibitities.

The most significant risks to which the Group is exposed are credit-, operational-, liquidity- and
market risk, including interest rate, foreign exchange risks and other price risk.

The Management Board of the Bank, within the rules as established by the National Bank of

Hungary and intesa Sanpaolo S.p.A, sets risk management policies. The Management Committees

of the Group implement the execution of these policies. Besides to the Management Commitiees,

- an independent Risk Assumption and Risk Management Commitiee has been established
- according to the legislative requirements in order to further strengthening the risk control.

The Risk Management Division is responsible for implementing and maintaining risk related

- procedures to ensure an indspeandent control process. Bank Treasury is responsibie for managing
the Bank’s assefs and liabilities and the overall financiat structure. It is also primarily responsible for
the funding and manages daily liquidity of the Bank. Activity of Treasury is supervised on a daily
hasis by the Market Risk Department and strategic ALM decisions are made by Financial Risk
Committee,

Risk management processes throughout the Bank are audited annually by the infernal audit
function that examines both the adequacy of the procedures ard the Bank's compliance with the
procedures, Internal audit discusses the results of all assessments with management, Risk
management framework is also comprehensively examined yearly by the National Bank of Hungary
irt the course of the Supervisory Review and Evaluation Process. '

The Group has established reporting systems, which permit the continuous monitorng of risk
exposures. The risks are measured and quantified according to different methods, both statistical
and non-statistical. Each method is based eon different levels of uncertainty. The combination of
methods makes it possible for the Group to assess the behaviour of its exposure in different risk
scenarios in order to capture all the aspects of the risk, This reflects both the expected loss fikely to
arise in normal circumstances and unexpected loss, which is an estimate of the uitimate actual loss
hased on statistical models.

As part of ifs overall risk management, the Group uses derivatives and other instruments to
manage exposures resulting from changes in interest rates, foreign currencies, equity risks, credit
risks, and any exposures arising from forecasted transactions. The Group actively uses collaterals
to reduce its credit risks.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counter party will be unable or unwilting fo meet a

* commitment that they have entered into with a member of the Group. It arises from lending, frade
finance, treasury and other activities undertaken by Group companies. Credit risk on loans and
receivables is managed by the Management Board through the Credit Committee, the Asset Quality
Session and the Problem Asset Committes, which establish credit regulations including the
approval process, discretionary credit limits, standards for the measurement of credit exposures,
risk ratings of clients and assessments of management quality and financial performance,

Each significant outstanding loan is reviewed at least monthly. Loans are classified based on a
point rating system, which incorporates gualitative and quantitative factors.

Credit rigk arising from derivative financial instruments is, at any time, limited to those with positive
fair values, as recorded in the Statement of Financial Position. Credit risk on trading instruments is.
managed by the Management Board through the Financiat Risk Committee. The Group maintains
strict conirel on open net positions, i.e. the difference between purchase and sale contracts, by both
amount and term,
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{45) Risk management (continued}

in order to avoid -excessive concentrations of risk, the Group’s policies arnd procedures include
“specific guidelines to focus on maintaining a diversified portfolio. ldentified concentrations of credit

-risks are controlied and managed accordingly.

_Thé table below shows the maximum exposure {gross carrying amount without any impairment
fosses) to credit risk. The maximum exposure is shown gross, before the effact of mitigation

through the use of master netting and collateral agreements.

o {milflion HUF} 2015 2014
. Cash and balances with central bank 23,259 27,335
Due from banks and subordinated loans 479,462 302,935
Financial assets at fair value through profit and foss 59,622 12,476
Derivative financial assets 15,371 19,599

- Loans and advances to customers 1,093,801 1,338,180
- 'Financiat investments — Available-for-sale 78,899 182,793
Other assets 3,788 " 8,030

. Financial guaraniees 37,852 42,986

_ “Commitments 265,797 162,250
Total maximum exposure 2,057,851 2,087,584
Total maximum exposure to credit risk 1,860,760 1,810,415

The fair values of derivatives shown on the Statement of Financial Position represent the current
credit risk exposure but not the maximum risk exposure that could arise in the future as a result of

the change in values,

The Group's loans and advances to customers before taking into account any collateral held or
other credit enhancement can be analysed by the following geographical regions:

(million HUF) 2015 2014
Hungary _ 1,046,793 1,307 451
Euro Zone countries 24,594 10,510

- of which PIGS countries 419 947
'European but Non-Eure Zone countries 22,175 20,763
Other regions 239 456
Total 1,083,801 1,339,180

PIGS' countries include the followings: Greece, Portugal, Irefand and Spain. An industry sector
anaiysis of the Group's financial assets, before taking into account collaterai heid or other credit

enhancements is provided in Note 20,

The amount and type of collateral required depehds on an assessment of the credit risk of the
counterparty. Guidelines are mplemented regarding the acceptability of types of collateral and

valuation parameters
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(45) Risk management {continued}

The main types of collatera obtained are as follows:

. For securifies lending and reverse repurchase transactions, cash or securities;

. For commercial lending, mortgage charges over real estate properties, inventory and trade
receivables;

The Group also obtains guarantees from parent companies for loans {o their subsidiaries. The
Group monitors the market value of collateral, requests additional collateral in accerdance with the
underiying agreement and monitors the market value of collateral obtained during its review of the
adequacy of the allowance for impairment losses.

Effect of Cradit Risk Mitigation on the exposure fo cradit risk:

* {million HUF) 2015 2014
Financial coliateral o (22,923) (21,514)
Guarantoes (24,365) {7,606)
Total (47,288) {29,120)

The Group assesses the foans with internal rating system, which differentiates the quality of non-
overdue loans. The table below shows the credit quality of the loans and advances to customers
excluding aliowances based on the Group’s credit rating system.

{million HUF) 2015 2014
Performing loans -

A - Excellent 11,940 13,231
B — Stable , 107,856 139,550
C - Acceptable _ 289,226 313,627
b — High Risk 86,526 120,378
Other ' 31,644 24,709
Retail - [ ) .273'793 281’675
Total performing loans 781,025 893,170
Non-performing [oans

Corporate loans ' 224,554 300,203
Retail foan 88,222 145,807
Total non-performing loans 312,776 446,010

The ,Other” rating refers to clienis, which were assessed with not the latest, but a previous rating
model.

it is the Group’s policy to maintain accurate and consistent risk ratings across the credit portfolio.
These facilitates focused on management of the applicable risks and the comparison of credit
exposures across all lines of business, geographic regions and products. The atiributable risk
ratings are assessed and updated regularly.
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(45) RIsk management (continued)

* . The table below shows the credit quality of the due from banks portfolie, based on the external

rating system,

{million AAAS A BBB+f BBH Less Not Total
HUF} AA- A- 8BB@- BB- than B rated

2015 39,271 2,7 172,228 260,980 1,198 2,916 479,385
2014 36,644 14,387 50,077 194,431 48 = 7,270 302,857

The table beiow shows the aging analysis of past due hut not individually impaired loans by

segment.

. 2015 Under 1 31 to 60 61 to 90 Over 91 Total
{million HUF) month days days days
Corporate loan 5,530 718 134 840 7,222
Retail loans 8,816 2,306 636 432 12,190
Total 14,346 3,024 770 1,272 19,412
2014 Under 1 31 to 60 61 to 90 Over 9 Total
{million HUF) month days days days’
Corporate loan 12,823 1,083 154 244 14,304
Retail loans 24,615 5,651 2,260 2,770 35,296
Total 37,438 6,734 2,414 3,014 49,600

Of the fotal aggregate amount of gross past due but not individually impaired lcans and advances
to custemers, the liquidation value of collateral that the Group held as at 31 December 2015
HUF 19,347 million and was HUF 52,826 million as at 31 December 2014,

The Group implemented ISP Group's new non-petforming classification in June 2015. According to
the harmonized rules the non performing exposures should be classified as

. any payments are overdue by more than 90 days with material due amount and not assessed
as Doubtful or Unlikely to pay (Past due},

. the improbability that the borrower will thoroughly fulfil

its credit obligations (by way of

repayment of principal and interest} without recourse to actions such as the enforcement of
guarantees/ collateral (Unlikely to pay),

+ the client is in a state of insolvency (Doubtfui).

The Group addresses impairment in

assessed allowances,

to two types: individually assessed allowances and collectively
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{45} Risk management {continued)

The following table below shows the credit quality of the non-performing foans and advances to
customers based on the Group’s rules:

{million HUF) 2015 2014
Doubtful loans 49,732 109,426
Unlikely to pay loans 100,281 82,132
Past due loans . 357 2,320
Total 150,370 193,878

The Group determines the individually assessed aliowances appropriate for each individually
significant ioan and advance on an individuat basis. items considered when determining allowance
amounts inciude the sustainability of the counterparty’s business plan, its ability to improve
performance once a financial difficulty has arisen, its expected dividend payout should bankruptcy

_ensue, its ability 1o recover outstanding amounts, the availability of other financiat support and the
realisable value of collateral.

Collectively assessed afiowances are assessed for losses on loans and advances that are not
individually significant and for individually significant loans and advances where there is not yet
objective evidence of individual impairment. The collective assessment takes account of impairment
that is likely to be present in the portfolio even though there is not yet objective evidence of the
impairment in an individual assessment. Impairment losses are estimated by taking into
consideration historical losses on the portfolio.

Colleét&ve allowances are calculated based on the actual rating based PD of the client, and
modelled LGD or cofiaterai coverage of the given exposure.

(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Bank will not be able to meet its payment obligations due
to its inability to obtain funds on the market (funding liquidity risk) or to liquidate its assets (market
liguuiidity risk).

The Management Board is responsible for maintaining a levet of liquidity and the definition of
control policies and management processes relating to the specific risk profile. Financial Risk
Committee monitors the impiementation of the Liquidity Policy of the Bank and delegates day-to-
day activities to the most appropriate offices and departments of the Bank. In the day-to-day
liquidity management the Head of Treasury and Capital Markets is responsible for implementing the
liquidity strategy and maintaining adequate liquidity within the limits described below. The Market
and Liquidity Risk Management measures and monitors the liquidity position and controls liguidity
limits on a daily basis, and aiso in charge of reporting to the management bodies and to the Parent
Company with regard to liguidity conditions and limits.

The intention of the CIB Group is to promote CIB's long standing philosophy of safe, sound and

conservative liquidity risk management and to give the right guidance fo ensure continucus and

safe liquidity levels within the Group. The key elements of the CIB Group's liquidity strategy are as

follows:

» increase Seif Financing Capacity in all segments;

. improve Structural Liquidity Position through matched funding (shareholder or market driven);

. focused appreach to short-term, medium-term, long-term product defmtlons in each business
line;

. in line with new regulations recently introduced in Hungary, the Bank wili always strictly
respect alt regutatory liguidity ratios,

66 ~ Bank of i_NTESA v SANPAOLO



CIB BANK Ltd.
and its subsidiaries

Notes to the Consclidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2015

" (45) Risk management {continued)

Through active participation in monetary and financial markets, the Treasury and Capital Markets
ensures integrated management of liquidity in Forint and forsign currencies of the Group; optimizes
the fiquidity portfolio, guaranteeing efficient colfateral management; and with regard to the other CIB
group companies, the Treasury and Capital Markets coordinates and facilitales intragroup cash
flows, favouring organised, efficient development in compliance with internal and external
regulations. It also acts to resolve any liquidity imbalances of the subsidiaries, in cooperation with.
the Market and Liguidity Risk Management, and promotes all operating activities deemed suitable
to return or keep the subsidiarios within the limits set forth by internat or external rules

The Liquidity Policy is includes to the Contingency Funding Plan which is to clearly set out the
strategies for addressing liquidity shortfalls in emergency situations and describing the liguidity
early warning system in operation. ' )

The tiquidity ratio is calculated as the ratio of liquid assets to fotal assets where liquid assets
consists of cash, nostro halances and bonds that are categorized by the National Bank of Hungary -
as eligible for its repo facility.

~The liquidity ratic during the year was as follows

Liquidity ratio (%) 2015 2014
31 December 301 228
Daily average during the period . . 24.2 17.1
Highest o 301 22.8
Lowsest 19.1 13.5

{The iiquidity of the Group depends on the Bank stand-alone fiquidity the above table includes the
CIB Bank only liquidity ratios.)

The maturity profile of the Group's financial fiabilities at 31 December 2015 is presented in Note 37.

fc) Market risk - Trading

Market risk is the risk of loss due to fluctuations in market variables such as interest rates, foreign
exchange rates and equity prices. The Group classifies exposures to market risk into either trading
or hon-trading portfolios. The market risk for the trading portfolic s managed and monitored through
applying methodology that reflects the interdependency between risk variables, '

The market risk for the trading portfolio is managed and monitered based on a VaR (Value at Risk)
“methodology which reflects the interdependency between different risk factors. VaR is a method
used in measuring financial risk by estimating the potential negative change in the market value of
a porifolio at a given confidence level and over a specified time horizon.

The Group uses simulation models fo assess possible changes in the market value of the trading
portfolic based on historical data from previous years. The VaR models are designed to measure
market risk in a normal market environment, The models assume that any changes occurring in the
risk factors affecting the normal market environmeant will foliow a2 normal distribution. The faclors of
the distribution are calculated by using exponentially weighted historical data. The use of VaR has
limitation because it is based on historical correlation and volatilities in market prices and assumes
that future price movements will follow a statistical distribution.

Due to the fact that VaR relies heavily on historical data to provide information and may not clearly
predict the future changes and modifications of the risk factors, the probability of large market
moves may be underestimated if changes in risk factors fail {o align with the normal distribution
assumption. VaR may also be under — or over-estimated due to the assumptions placed on risk
factors and the relationship between such factors for specific instruments, Even though positions
may change throughout the day, the VaR only represents the risk of the portfolios at the close of
each business day, and it does not account for any losses that may occur beyond the 99%
~ confidence fevel.
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{45) Risk management (continued)

Since VaR is an integral part of the Group's market risk management, VaR limits have been
established for all frading operations with separate limit amounts for foreign exchange, interest rate,
squity and fotat VaRs. Exposures are raviewed daily against the limits by management.

: " Foreign Correla-
VaR - 2015 ex. |nterest Equity tion Total
{million HUF} change rate effect
- 31 December 21 37 1 21) 38
Daily average during the period 31 66 2 (27} 72
Highest 87 115 4 {84) 122
Lowest 5 28 1 () 29
' Foreign Correla-
VaR - 2014 ex. Interest e iy tion Total
{million HUF} change rate offect
31 December 59 37 3 (34) 65
Daily average during the period 31 31 2 (18) 47
Highest 115 73 3 {85) 107
Lowest 6 2 2 9 19

(As the market risk trading book is managed at the CIB Bank level, the table includes the amounts
on a Bank level basis).

in-addition to the VaR limits, position and stop-loss limits have been set up in line with the internal
regulations of intesa Sanpaoio Group.

Position fimits enables the monitoring of exposures reat time, and as a robust measurement
technigue, can be relied upon in case of error in the VaR modet.

Separate position limits and sub-limits are in place for foreign exchange, equity and interest rate
positions.

Stop-loss limits are designed to control the down side movement of the profit and loss in a particular
position. Separate stop-loss limits have been established both on a month-to-date and year-to-date
horizon for the individual Treasury desks. .

(d) Market risk ~ Non-trading

. Interest rate risk— Non-trading

Interest rate risk is measured by the extent to which changes in market interest rates impact on
equity and on net interest income. Gaps in the value of assets, liabilities and off balance sheet
instruments that mature or reprice during a given period generate interest rate risk. The Group

~ reduces this risk by matching the repricing of assets and iiabilities using pricing/maturity techniques,
including the use of derivative products.

Interest rate risk is managed by the Treasury in the Group day-to-day operation supervised by the
senior management, by Risk Management, and by the Parent Company. Risk tolerance limitation
and the related policy are set by the Group's Management Board. On the tactical horizon interest
risk is managed by the Financial Risk Committes, which proposes position and sensitivity timits,
and monitors such limits to restrict the effect of movements in interest rates on current earnings and
on the vaiue of interest sensitive assets and liabilities.
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- (45_) Risk management {continued)

* The foliowing table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonabie possible change in interest rates,
- with alf other variables heid constant, of the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income. '

" The sensitivity of the Statement of Comprehensive Income is the effect of the assumed changes in

_interest rates on the net interest income for one year, based on the floating and fixed rate non-

“trading financial assets and financial liabilities heid at 31 December 2015, The sensitivity of equity

is catculated by revaluing all non-trading financial assets, liabifities and derivatives at 31 December

. 2014 for the effects of the assumaed changes in interest rates. The Group uses for the sensitivity of

" ‘equity calcuiations, among others, the NPV and modified duration method, with zero floor on
" interest rates. - o

Threshold of zero is implemented in the calculation for those cases when the decrease of basis
" points would indicate a negative interest income. This method amends the symmetry of the

sensitivity analysis.

At the end of December 2015 there has been a change in methedology of the sensitivity calculation
~ as the.Group has inserted the CIB Leasing transactions at analylical levet compared to the Proxy

-applied in the previous years. The following table indicates the changes from the methodalogy at
- the end of 2015. ' '

* After change in methodology:

_ Sensiti- Sensitivity of equity
- 2015 Increase vity of .
“{million in basis net . : Total
HUF) points interest 0to 6 6 months tto 5 Over 5
income months  to 1 year yoars - years
HUF +200 (1,016.11) {130.15) 71.30 54.57 (939.34) {943.62)
EUR +100 (266.95) (87.21) 121.81 240.68 {396.98) {121.69)
usb + 25 {6.40) (0.94) 4.41 0.38 68.23 7207
CHF 425 - 0.00 28.22 0.49 {0.57) {0.72) 27.42
Other +25 {3.20) 0.22} 0.38 0.00 1.16 1.32
Sensiti- Sensitivity of equity :
De- .
. {2:1?“5| on crease in vlt):qz: T Total
HUF) basis intarast 0to6 6 months 1t08 Over 5
points income months  fo 1 year years years
HUF {200} 681.23 90.34 {50.35} {4.71) 1,312.90 1,258.19
EUR {100} 0.00 {9.30) 21.18 (9.09) 38120 383.99
usb {25) 6.42 0.16 {3.75} {0.39) (76.77) (58.47)
CHF . {25) 0.00 22.45 0.39 (0.31) {0.24) 21.01

Other (25) 3.20 0.44 (0.27} 0.00 (1.45) {1.28)
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. (45) Risk management (continued)

Before change in methodology:

Sensiti- . Sensitivity of equity
2015 Increase vityof
{million in hasls net Total
HUF) points intarast 0to6 6 months 1to & Over §
income months  to 1 year years years
HUF + 200 2.65 {798.8) {485.3) {(5.0) (650.9)y  {1,937.8)
EUR + 100 (2.14) {101.6) 84.2 13.3 {0.0) {4.1)
usD + 25 {1.3) 36 {0.1) DO 2.2
CHF +25 {27.8) (1.5} {0.7) {0.7) {30.5)
Other + 25 0.3 0.4 0.0 0.0 0.7
De- Sensiti- Sensitivity of equity
mifion croaseln Y% - Tota
HUF) basls interest 0to6 6months 1t05 Over 5
points L ome  months to1year years years
HUF {200) {14.03} 558.6 337.2 8.6 850.9 1,756.2
EUR {100} {0.6) (9.3) 34 {8.6) 0.0 {14.5)
uso (25) 1.3 (3.6} 0.1 0.0 (2.2
CHF (25} {27.6} (1.5} {07 0.5 {29.3)
Other (25} (0.4} 04 0.0 0.0 (0.8)
Sensiti- Sensitivity of equity
2014 Increase vity of o
{million in basis net Total
HUF) points interest 0to6 & months 1to3 Over 5
income months  to 1 year years years
HUF + 200 563.5 {25.5) 241.4 1157 895.1 563.5
EUR +100 {693.1) 22.8 {136.8) 0.0 {807.1) {693.1)
ushD +25 4.3 {4.3) {0.2) 0.0 {0.2) 4,3
CHF + 25 (104.7} 26.2 {0.1) o0 (79.5) (104.7)
GCther +25 0.5 0.3 0.0 0.0 0.8 0.5
Sensiti- Sensitivity of equity
De- b
' {zrggl‘i‘ion crease in w%:: Total
HUF) basis | o rest 0to& 6months 1t05 Over 5
points .- me  months to1 year years years
HUF {200} (573.5) 26.0 (264.8) {136.0} {948.2} (573.5)
EUR {100} 97.5 {4.5) 18.4 0.0 112.4 97.5
usoD {25) (4.1 4.3 0.2 0.0 0.5 (4.9)
CHF {25) (25.6) {0.7) (0.0} 0.0 {26.4) {25.6)
{25) {0.3) (0.3} 0.0 0.0 (0.7} {0.3)

Cther
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{45} Risk management {continued)

' Foreign exchange risk— Non-frading

. Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to
changes in currency rates. :

' ‘The Group has assets and liabilities, both on and off balance sheet, denominated in various foreign
currencies. Foreign exchange risk arises when the actual or forecasted assets in a foreign cusrency
.are either greater or less than the liabilities in that currency.

Any non-trading foreign exchange risk is transferred through intermal hedges 16 trading book and is
therefore reflected and managed via the value-at-risk figures in the trading books described under
section (¢) Market risk — Trading, with the exception of strategic and residual foreign FX positions.
Overall strategic FX portfolio was constantly closed untit FX conversions related to foreign
‘exchange mortgages and car loans took ptace in February and November 2015, meaning there
were no open FX position and FX exposure related to the conversions while the Group has residual
FX position.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income to reasonable possible changes in exchange rates, with ali other variables held constant.

Foreign exchange risk — Non-trading

12015 Sensitivity of net income
(million HUF) Y
_ EUR CHF Total
5% strengthening of currencies vs, HUF 129 (11) 118
5% weakening of currencies vs, HUF (129) 11 (118)

Foreign exchange risk — Non-frading

2014 Sensitivity of net income
(mitlion HUF) y

EUR CHF Total
5% strengthening of currencies vs, HUF (134) 956 g22
5% weakening of currencies vs, HUF 134 {956} (822)

Changes in exchange rates does not have any effect on equity.
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- {45) Risk management {continued)

The currency structure of the Group’s assets, liabiliies as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 is as
foliows (currency equivaients in million HUF}

72

2015 '
(million HUF) HUF CHF EUR Usp Qther Total
Cash and current accounts 29 366 23 615 196 59 23 269
with central bank ! '
Due from banks 282,658 452 187,301 1,442 7.532 479,385
Financial assets at fair

_ value through profit or loss 59,444 ) 38 130 10 39,622
Loans and advances to

 customers 542,249 45,996 318,615 1,972 1,372 910,204
Financial investments -
Available-for-sale 78,386 i 490 i i 78,876
Non-current assets held
for sale 858 - 3,166 - - 4,024
Other assets 3,693 55 1,478 25 5 5,256
Total assets 988,796 46,526 511,703 3,765 8,978 1,559,768
Deposits from banks 105,760 72,201 46,505 412 151 225,029
Deposits from customers 892,833 5,274 222,024 44,315 15,260 1,179,706
Liahilities from issued
securities 10,107 - 18,055 - - 28,162
Cther liabilities 11,183 10 3.960 357 - 15,610
Subordinated debt - - 56,421 - - 56,421
Total liabilities 1,019,883 77,585 346,965 45,084 15411 1,504,928
Net on-Statement of
Financial Position (31,087} {31,059) 164,738 {41,319) (6,433} 54,840
FX position of
derivatives 87,580 30,384 {163,374} 41,793 3,617
Off-balance 219,266 31 63,314 18,428 - 301,039
Guarantees 18,192 - 12,252 2,218 - 32,662
Letters of credit - - 3,797 504 - 4,301
Loans and overdraft
facilitios not disbursed 201,074 31 47,265 15,706 - 264,076
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 (45) Risk management {continued)

2014 .
- (million HUF} HUF CHF EUR usp Other Total
. Cash and current accounts '

with centraf bank 26,191 43 813 222 66 27,335

Due from banks 235,392 1,137 59,265 3,815 3,248 302,857

Financial assetfs at fair

value through profitorioss 12.283 - 6 "7 i 12,476

Loans and advances to

cuStomers 334,809 274,896 449,137 2,264 316 1,061,422
- Financial investments — '

Available-for-sale 82,623 - 100,147 - - 182,770
" Other assets 4,346 124 551 12 5 5,038

Total assets 695,644 276,200 609,989 6,430 3,635 1,591,898

.Deposils from banks 56,958 101,640 52,376 1,886 795 213,655

Deposits from customers 813,307 52,942 200,708 39,686 8,087 1,114,740
- Liabilities from issued '

securities 63,698 - 27,12 - - 91,410

Tax liabilittes 9,566 19 708 398 13 10,701

Other liabilities 30,450 6,312 T 452 - - 37,214

Subcrdinated debt - - 56,740 - - 56,740

Total liabilities 973,979 160,913 338,693 41,970 8,805 1,524,460

Net on-Statement of

Financiat Position {278,335) 115,287 271,296 {35,540} {5,270} 67,438

FX position of

derivatives 345466  (109,863) (277,029} 35,292 6,134

Off-balance 144.238 1 38.527 16.050 2 198.818

Guararifees 25511 - 11.681 415 2 37.609 .

Letters of credit - - 2.820 721 - 3.541

Loans and overdraft 118.727 1 24026  14.914 - 157.668

facilities not dishursed
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(45) Risk management {continued)
(e} Operational risk

Operational risk is defined as the risk of suffering losses due fo inadequacy or failures of internal
processes, human resources and internal systems, or as a resuilt of external events. Operational
- rigk includes:

'« legal risk, meaning the risk of losses resulting from the breach of laws or regulations,
contractuat or other liability or from other disputes;

s model risk, defined as the potential loss an institution may incur, as a consequence of
decisions that could be principally based on the output of internal models, due to errors in the
development, impiementation or use of such models;

e -compliance risk, defined as the risk to incur judicial or administrative penalties, sngmfcant
financial losses or damage to reputation as a result of the violation of mandatory rules or self-
governance regulation;

. ICT risk (Information and Communication Technology risk}, defined as the risk of economic,
reputational and market share losses related to the use of information and communication

technelogy.
. Strategic and reputational risks are excluded.

In the CIB Group, Operational Risk Management measures and monitors the Group’s exposure to
operationai risk and reports thereon to the senior management and supervisory bodies. Operational
Risk Management is also responsible for the consistent application and operation of the intesa
Sanpaoclo Group's operational risk management framework, also taking into account the local
idiosyncrasies.

in the CIB Group, the governing committee responsible for overviewing operational risk
‘management activities is the Operational Risk Commitiee (ORC). The primary purpose of the
Committee is to propose, advise on and investigate matters related to operationat risk, thereby
support the Management Board of the Bank. The Committee meets in every second month when it
reviews and discusses the Bank’s operational risk exposure and the engoing risk mitigation actions.

In managing the CiB Group's operational risk exposure, both qualifative and quantitative toofs are
being applied.

One of the quakitative fools is the annual operational self-diagnosis where operational criticalities
are identified and mitigating actions are defined in response fo those criticaities. A set of
operational key risk indicators is alse used as a qualitative measure aiming at conveying an easily
understandable overal picture to the senior management about the operational risk profile of the
Group, and in the meanwhile, enabling the Group to react in a timely manner to adverse changes in
1hat risk profile.

As a quantitative measure histerical operational risk loss data have been collected and analysed in
a systematic way since 2004. On the basis of the analyses performed by Operational Risk
Management, mitigating actions are initiated to avoid the re-occurrence of similar losses or prevent
the materiatisation of potential risks.

In 2015, CIB Group detected and recorded in its internai loss database 698 operational risk events
which caused HUF 1,439 miflion effective operational loss {exctuding losses boundary with credit
risk and specific provisions). In 2014, the corresponding numbers were 423 events withh HUF 1,982
mitlion loss. (Piease note that in order to ensure comparability with previous periods, the above
disclosed losses of 2015 do not contain the losses arising from the governmental actions driven
settlement of bid-offer spreads and unilateral price increases of consumer loans and the associated
operating expenses of the settlement process. According to the National Bank of Hungary, these ‘
losses shali be classified as operational risk -losses however they are considered to be
extragrdinary and one-off.)

Since January 2008 both the Bank on a stand-alone basis and the CIB Group on the consolidated
basis have been calculating the regulatory capital requirement of the operational risk on the basis of
The Standardised Approach (TSA).
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" Part F — Information on capital

| {46) Capital and capital management

"The primary objective of the capital management of the Group is to ensure the prudent operation,
: the entire compliance with the prescriptions of the regulator for a persistent business opsration and
- maximising the shareholder vaiue, accompanied by an optimal financing structure,

‘The basis of the capital management of the Group members in the short run is the continuous
-monitoring of their capital position, in the fong run the strategic and the business planning, which
inciudes the monitoring and forecast of the capital position,

Capital adequacy

_. The Capital Requirements Directive package (CRDIV/CRR) transposes the new global standards
" on banking regulation {(known as the Basel ill agreement) into the EU legal framework. The new
rules are applied from 1 January 2014. This new framework makes instifutions in the EU more solid
~and strengthens their capacity fo adequately manage the risks linked to their activities, and absorb
any losses they may incur in doing business with spec;al focus on the liquidity risk management
tools and the capital requirements.

" - The capital adequacy of the Group is supervised based on the financial statements data prepared
" in accordance w;th IFRS applying the current directives, rullngs and indicators from 1 January
20114,

- The Group has entirely complied with the regulatory capltal reqmrements in 2015 as weli as mn
2014. o

internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process {ICAAP)

The second pillar of Basel I capital framework prescribes how supervisory autherities and banks

_can effectively assess the appropriate level of capital. The assessment must cover alf the risks
incurred by the Group, their sensitivity to crisis scenarios, and how they are expected to evolve in
fight of changes in the Group's business going farward.

The Group not only reviews its capital ratios, but i also assesses and continuously monitors its risk
bearing capacity. The Group's primary internal measure to assess the impact of very severe
unexpected losses across the different risk types is economic capital, which is also planned as pan
of the risk and capital strategy.

The Bank continuously focusing on the foliowing risks:

Credit Risk
Risk that customers may not be able to meet their contractual payment obligations.

Operational Risk

The rigk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or from
external events. This definition includes legal, model, compliance and ICT {information and
Communication Technology) risk, but excludes strategic and reputational risk. :

Market Risk

The risk that arises from the uncertainty concemning changes in market prices and rates (including
interest rates, equity prices, foreign exchange rates and commaodity prices), the correfations among
- them and their levels of volatility.

Residual Risk

The risk that arises from the recognized risk measurement and mitigation technigues used by the
credit institution proves less effective than expecied. The residual risk has three main components;
(i) residual risk of assets is used in credit risk mltlgauon {ii) residual risk of own bank properties, (iii}
residual risk of rapossessed propertles :
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(46) Capital and capital management

Model Risk

Risk that occurs when a financial model used to measure a firm's risks does not perform the tasks
or capture the level of risks it was designed to. Any model is a simplified version of reality, and with
any simplification there is the risk that something will fail to be accounted for.

. Congentration Risk

Conceniration risk is a banking term denoting the overall spread of a bank's ouistanding accounts
over the number or variety of debtors to whom the bank has fent money. This risk is calculated
using a "concentration ratio” which explains what percentage of the outstanding accounts each
bank loan represents.

" Banking book - Interest Rate Risk

Risk of fosses on the fair value of the portfolio of banking assets and liabilities, not including trading
assets and liabilities, resulting from changes in interest rates,

Interast rate risk is taken to be the current or prospective risk to both the earnings and capital of
institutions arising from adverse movements in interest rates. In the context of Pillar 2, this is in
respect of the banking book oniy, given that interest rate risk in the frading book is already covered
under market risk regulations. '

Liguidity Risk
The risk arising from the Bank's potential inability to meet all payment obligations when they come
due or only being able to meet these obligations at excessive costs.

Country Risk _
The risk that the Bank may suffer a loss, in any given country, due to deterioration in economic

conditions, political and social unrest, natiohalization and expropriation of assets, government
repudiation of external indebtedness, exchange controls and currency depreciation or devaluation,

Settiement Risk

Settlement risk is the risk that a transaction executed is not settled as expected through a
settlement system, Settlement risk comprises credit risk and liquidity risk elements. Treasury
transactions, trading book items {deals} and capital market dealings concluded as part of
investment services convey a settlement risk that is a specific mix of credit and liquidity risk. The
credit institution or the investment firm bears the risk that while it fulfils its contractual obligations
(payment or delivery), the counterparty fails or defauits to do so.

Reputational Risk

The reputation risk is defined as a risk of a drop in profits or capital due te a negative perception of
the image of the bank by customers, counterparties, shareholders, investors or supervisory
authorities

Strategic Risk

Present or prospective strategic risk is defined as the risk linked to a potential drop in profits or
capital due to changes in the aperating context or erroneous corporate decisions, inadequate
implementation of decisions or poor reactions to ¢changes in the competitive environment.

High_Risk Porifolic

in ling with the National Bank of Hungary's requirement the Group identifies the portfolic meeting
the criteria defined by the Supervisor for high risk portfolio and allocates additionat capital for it.
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{46) Capital and capital management

Applied methodologies

- . The Group applies Standardized Methodologies (STA) for managing Credit risks Operational fisks
and Market risks under the above defined PFiliar 1.

"~ The Group confinuously improves the applied methodologies to be prepared for implementing
- advanced methodologies in a proper time frame.

_ in refation to Pillar 2 the Group implemented advanced methodology that is reviewed and improved
© - periodically. ' ' :

Capital management

- The Group's regulator, National Bank of Hungary sets and monitors capital requirements for the
Group.
The Groups's regutatory capital consists of the sum of the following elements:

»  Tier 1 (all qualifies as Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) capital), which includes ordinary share
capital, related share premiums, retained earnings, reserves and deductions for intangible
assets and deferred tax other than temporary differences

-« Tier 2 capital, which includes qualifying subordinated liabilities

~ The Group maintains an actively managed capital base to cover risks inherent in the business. The
- adeguacy of the Group’s capital is monitored using, among other measures, the rules and ratios.

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong
credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order fo support its business and maximize sharehoider
value based on total capitat ratio.

To strengthen the Bank's capital position the shareholders increased the Share Capital of the Bank
by HUF 3 as the face value of the issue shares in 2014, The total capital contribution that was paid
by the sharehoiders was HUF 116,137 million in 2014 from which HUF 49,137 million was the cther
aquity contribution fo cover financial josses.

The difference between the face value of the shares and the totaf paid confribution was registered
as capital reserves. ' ' .

No capilal increase was necessary in 2015.
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~ . (46} Capital and capjtal management (continued)

- Regulatory capital

16.73%

(million HUF) 2015 2014
" Share capital - 50,000 145,000
Reserves 435,333 143,143
- Current year's profit or (loss) (40,224) (104,140}
Total shareholder’'s equity . 145,109 184,003
© Deduction items S
Intangible assets {7,721 (6,529)
 Tier 1 Gapital 137,382 177,474
~“Subordinated capital 46,788 56,473
- Revaluation reserve (1,302) 28
Deductions from Tier 2 Capital 1,302 {28)
Tier 2 Capital 46,788 56,473
Tetal Capital 184,170 233,947
Risk weighted assets for Cradit risks 917,591 1,053,292
- Risk weighted assets for Market risks 18,982 31.,77¢
Risk weighted assets for Operating risks 163,185 201,300 .
.Credit Valuation Adjustment ' 956 2,290
Risk weighted assets 1,100,754 1,288,661
Tier 1 capital ratio 12.48% 13.80%
Total capital ratio 18.19%

The minimum capital requirement is 8% under Pillar1. The Group also meet the requirement of

SREP.

SREP requiraments for 2016 are already available, and the Group meets the relating requirements

according to the expectations.
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. Business environment

- Macro and microeconomic environment
- 1. GDP

- After the Hungarian ecenomic growth gained momentum in 2013 (foliowing a brief period of recession)
" the annual average growth rate of GDP accelerated even further in 2014 (to 3.8% versus 1.8% in 2013 —
‘these are upward revised figures released by the Central Statistical Office in 2015). A slight downward
‘'shift of the quarterly momentum had already been observed in H2 2014, io be followed by further
slowdown in 2015, Last year's slowdown had been widely expected and it emerged from Q2 on. GDP
rose by 3.5% in Q1 2015 (this was still higher than in Q3-Q4 2014), while yfy growth rate dropped in Q2
and Q3 to 2.7% and 2.4% respectively. 2015 growth rates on a g/q basis showed a slowdown already
from the first quarter (0.5-0.6% in 2015 versus 0.7-1.1% in 2014). The detailed GDP-breakdown had
already showed a shift in the structure of GDP-contribution compared to preceding years at the end of
2014 and this was also reflected by the available 2015 data. Net exports were not the sole driver of
growth any longer, Domestic demand tock the first place amid the revival of household consumption.

_investments peaked in 2014 and showed weaker performance in Q1-Q3 2015 given the start of a new
fiscal period in the EU. From the production side car manufacturing remained the main driver of growth,
but the overall industrial performance became slightly more balanced.

- According to the preliminary data release of the CSO Q4 economic growth surpassed expectations and
. also the performance of the preceding quarters with a growth rate of 3.2%. Hence for the whole of 2015
~ came at 2.9%. For 2016 further slowdown is likely: most prolec{ions fali into the range of 2., 0 2.5%, W|th
the NBH forecast at the upper end of the range. .

2.5
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0.5
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10,0 4 | . 4.5
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Data source: NBH, Central Statistical Office {C30)
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2, Budget and external balance

In 2015 the cash-flow based budget balance was behind the revised annual plan of HUF 892bn primarily

. due to delayed inflow of EU funds. However, the ESA balance (alse used for the assessment of the
- Maastricht criteria) arrived better than the official plan of -2.4% of GDP. Prefiminary comments fram the

_government in January 2016 suggested that the 2015 deficit was close to 2% of GDP. This implies a
- better ESA performance compared to 2014 and shows increasing room for state debt reduction.

- In the first half of 2015 the fiscal performance was slightly weaker than suggested by the in-year patterns
‘of the revenus and the expenditure side. By the end of (i1 this year the deficit reached HUF 311bn or
61% of the annual target, implying a slightly worse performance compared to 2014. However, the budget
was supported by a GDP growth rate arriving above the official budgetary forecast, and this was
- especially strongly reflected in tax revenues in Q3-Q4. The budget plan and its execution remained
significantly affected by special sectoral crisis taxes including the bank tax. :

External balance indicators showed a continued favourable development in 2015 (similar to 2014 and the
preceding years), partly in tandem with the limited import impact of rising domestic demand (both from
the state sector and from households) and also given the strong export performance of the car industry.
The cumutated Q3 current account balance came at a surplus of EUR 1.7bn in 2015, which is not only
-stronger performance than that of last year, but a new historical record, with aiready five full year
surpluses in the time series between 2010 and 2014, The strong current account was primarily a resuit of
-the trade balance which showed a positive balance above EUR 8 bilfion in 2015 {preliminary data). This
exceeds the balance performance of the same periods of last year. These developments also indicated
_an ongoing improvement in the countrys net fnancmg capacity External balances are set to remam
posmve throughout 2016 - o . o

3. Infiation

Inflation as measured by average CPi was -0.1% in 2015, followed by an average of -0.2% in 2014,
- Despite the negative figures, and inflation being in negative territory in five out twelve months last year
. (and in eight consecutive months from September 2014 {o Aprif 2015), deflation was not a real threat in
- the Hungarian economy. This is because the downward shift was not widespread in several price
categories and it was not driven by a weakness of the demand side. Also, core inflation was hovering in
positive territory (mostly at aor above 1%} eventually hitting an annual average of 1.2% (down from 2.2%
in 2014). Price movemants were more significantly influenced by cuts in administrative prices (especially
household energy prices), though this impact was diminishing in H1 2015. Still, tower fuel prices and
- partly aiso lower-than-expected food prices, and the lack of imported inflationary pressures contributed to
the fall in headiine CPI. Regarding the monthiy yfy figures, headline inflation hit a fow in January this year
(at -1.4%) and it has been on the rise with a temporary drop in the Juiy-October pericd. CPI returned to
the vicinity of 1% (0.2% in December) with an outlook of further rise at the beginning of 2016. Infiation is
‘set to remain well below the central bank's unchanged target level of 3%, with an expected support from
ongoing low fuel prices. The central bank projects an annual average CP1 of 1.7% for 2016.
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4. Labour market

" The unemployment rate showed some stabilisation at 7.4% in Q1 2015, following a drop from above 9%

o 7.3% in 2014. In general, the unemployment rate remained on a downward track in 2015 — by

November, it reached 6.2%. Al the same time the number of the employed rose further and exceeded
" 4.2 miflion in the September-November period last year.

Such drop in unemployment (since 2013) was supported by a faster rise in employment coupled with the
rise of the activity rate. However, this remained strongly affected by employees working abroad and by
state subsidized employment. Overall the labour market may still be considered as slack, though to a '
~ lesser extent than previously. Labour demand indicators still suggest moderate rise of demand from the
. side of the private sector. In addition fo the state programme, labour market processes are still affected
by eariier changes in pension rules and the introduction of stricter rules of unemployment benefits,

In the January-November period of 2015 wages rose by 4.1% compared to the same period of the
‘preceding year. There was also a trend of growth regarding real wages in tandem with the revived (but
still moderate) rise of inflation in 2015. ' . .
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" 5. Monetary policy

The central bénk revived the easing cycle of 2012-14 in March 2015 from 2.10%, moving down with
steps of 15 basis points fo 1.35%. Since July, the base rate was left unchanged at 1.35%. The switch
from 2W to 3M in terms of the main policy instrument did not have any major impact on interest rate

policy,

Low inflation {well below the NBH target, ongoing supportive infiation outiook and the relative resilience
“of local markets despite the swings in globa? sentiment and the start of QE programme by the European
-Central Bank (ECB) supported the revival of the easing cycle.

The NBH's Monetary Council (MC) clearly indicated in July that the easing cycle had ended at a 1.35%

- base-rate level, and that the economy should settle in for a long period of foose monetary conditions. In
-effect, further monetary easing followed without affecting the main policy rate, applying quantitative
measures. Regarding interest rate policy, the NBH's goal is unchanged: to keep the base rate at the
lowest possible level for the longest possible fime. in fight of the internal fundamentals / domestic
inflationary outicok and the external environment {financial market risks), the central bank had and
probably will continue to have sufficient room for manoeuvre for this purpose. Non-conventional forms of
monetary easing, in part through the revised lending program and aiso through other liquidity/non-
interest measures, have gained importance within the policy framework.

NATIONAL BANK OF HUNGARY BASE RATE
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The ECB's monetary easing (QE) provided support o the Hungarian unit during most of 2015, helping
the FX market to recover from the CHF-shock. The execution of FX-mortgage conversion in the case of
households also eliminated a source of risk from the FX market. While these factors and the ongoing
strong external balances of the Hungarian aconomy provided a solid background for the FX market, the
low interest rate premium stili makes the forint vulnerable to external shocks. While this exposure and
fragifity has been reduced further in H1 2015, pending geopolitical risks and a rising wave of global risk
aversion intensified pressure on the Hungarian unit. The expected risk of the Fed's forthcoming
tightening cycle was dampened by the ongoing shifts in expectations about the start of the cycle and by
the expected slow momentum of the tightening cycle that eventually kicked off in December.

Amid these circumstances the HUF/EUR exchange rate showed only modest weakening trend last year,
The cross rate fluctuated mostly at 300-320, with a brief deviation above {January) and below (March-
April) this range. The average exchange rate level was 309.6 in 2015.

Foreign demand for Hungarian (forint denominated)} government bonds decreased in this period, though
-without triggering any significant pressure either in the Fl or the FX market. The stock of non-residents’

holdings dropped helow the HUF 4000 billion threshold but this shift was compensated by demand from

households and the iocal banking sector. .

I
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~ Regarding the performance of the HUF/CHF cross exchange rate, it was shocked by the decision of the
- Swiss Central Bank to abandon the 1.20 EURICHF limit in January 2015. With the immediate extreme
* appreciation of the Swiss franc the HUF/CHF rate had jumped temporarily to the 300-322 range before it

- consolidated in H2 January and February. In March and in Q2 the HUF/CHF rate showed a gradual
upwarg shift from the 283-290 range 1o the vichity of the 300 threshold in June 2015. in most of H2 the
cross rate was relatively stable, mostly in the range of 285-295. However, with the FX-mortgage
conversion the exposure of the Hungary economy and markets to sw:ngs in the HUF!CHF rate had been
: _masswely reduced ' .
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6. Banking Environment

The Hungarian banking sector still faces significant challenges.
The largest challenges are

. restoring market-based corporate lending,
¢ resolving the non-performing portfolio,
. improvement.in profitabifity.

Government actions have a significant negative effact on the profitability of the Hungarian banks (please
see section 7. for more details), however the cooperation agreement between the European Bank for
Reconstruction and Development (EBRD} and the government concluded in February 2015 shows new
direction for the domestic banking sector develepment in the future such as:

. The government has agreed that does not constitute any faw in the future which would have direct
negative impact on the banking sector's profitabiiity.

. Under the agreement, the banking sector tax has been reduced from 2016 through the
modification of the tax rate. Please see further details in section 7. .

. The government is supporting the banking sector on winding up the NPL loan porifoho with
foliowing the international best market practices

s Bank of INTiS»fi
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. Corporate lending, in particular to SMEs, improved substantially in last years. Further acceleration was
“ seen in lending to non-financial corporations, with the Funding for Growth Scheme (FGS) making a

. considerable contribution in this regard. Funding for Growth Scheme was jaunched in June 2013 by the

" NBH and it was extended until the end of 2015. The Funding for Growth Scheme effectively stabilised

- . lending te non-financial corporates, however, market based lending remained remarkably subdued. For

~ fhis purpose, the NBH addresses an important role to the instruments to be introduced as of 2016,
providing positive incentives for lending. :

-Funds with favourabie conditions will remain available for SMEs in a more targeted form and lower
volume in 2016, during the phase-out stage of the FGS. In addition to FGS the instruments of the Growih
Supporting Programme (GSP) may potentially result in a total of HUF 250-400 billion increase in
corperate loans outstanding. .

" The househoid loan portfolio declined further primariiy in foreign currency tending, while HUF lending
increased in 2015. The share of housing loans in new loan disbursements increased substantially: rising

- employment, higher real wages and decreasing lending rates had a positive joint impact on household
borrewing through consumption and nhousehold investments. :

~ Credit conditions towards households slightly eased during the year, however as a result of the

~ gettlement and conversion into forint, households’ debt service burden decreased while their net financial

~ worth increased, which — looking ahead — may also support the households' credit demand in paraile!
" with sound economic environment.

- The share of non-performing loans in household morigage and commercial real estate portfolios is still
" high. in relation fo the quality of the corporate portfolio, nonperforming project loans continued to be the
problem; the activities of MARK may help to rescive this problem. Several important steps have been
taken already, and as a result, a debt manager functioning on a market basis and setting a European
precedent may socn commence operations. o

" Total assets and ligbilities

Based on the most recent available figures (as of December 2015) the banking sector's overall tota'l
assets increased by 0.7% (FX adjusted + 0.6%) and amounted to HUF 31,623 biltion.

The gross loan portfolio decreased by 7.9% (HUF 15 842 billion} compared 1o December 2014 (-8.1%
excluging the foreign exchange effect}. The lending capacity of Hungarian banks remained under
pressure aiso because of low profitability.

{ oans 1o households decreased continuously during the year by 12.8% {excluding FX effect: -13.1%) as
new disbursement is lower than the maturing volumes. Demand for new loans was at very iow level
during the recent years, however from 2014 households new dishursement significantly increased
compared to last years. There was 38.3% increase in retail new disbursements as of November 2015
compared to the same period last year. The volume of foreign currency loans significantly decreased due
to the conversion of the foreign currency mortgage portfelio from 58.1% as of Dec 2014 to 33.7% as of
December 2015,

The volume of deposits from customers increased by 7.0% compared to the end of 2014, amounted to
HUF 15,876 bilion at the end of December 2015. Retail deposits slightly increased (+4.6%), while
corporate deposit increased by 14.4%, furthermore other deposits increased by 1.1% compared to
December 2014. At the same time the net asset value of investment funds increased by 5.2% (HUF 278
biltion) compared to the end of last year and totaled te HUF 5,634 billion at the end of December 2015,
While government bond portfolio of consumer customers increased by 32.6% as of November compared
to 2044 December. .
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Credit quality

90+ past due ratio decreased to 12.9% as of September 2015. The coverage ratio (Loan [0ss provisions /
Total loan volume) increased by 0.14% points (10.9%). Volume of corporate loans with more than 90
days past due within total loan showed a small decrease of 0.5% points and the 90+ ratio was 13.4% at
the end of September 2015. The retail segment's portfolio quality has improved significantly in the first
quarter of 2015 due to government measures (80+ ratio was 15.8%), but during the year the loan

- portfolio was deteriorating again, for the third quarter of 2015 90+ ratio amounted to 18.4%, whlch IS
0. 9% polnt improvernent compared to the 2014 year—end .
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" Profitability

" The profitability of the banking sector increased as of December 2015 compared to the same period of
tast year, mainly due to the significantly lower provisioning which was partly offset by the significant
decrease in interest income. There were high provisioning in 2014 due to seftlement and conversion on
consumer loans. Profit after tax under focal GAAP totaled to HUF 138.1 billion as of December, 2015.

- Net Interest Income decreased by 15.5%, which was offset by Other Income / Expense decrease. The

- Profit from Trading Activities decreased by 19.8%, while Net Commission Income increased by 4. 6%

compared to the same period last year. The cost { income ratio was 62.0% at the end of December 2015.

Profit after tax (HUF Bm)

*Normalised with a one-off non-core bank transaction .

Cost/lncome ratio
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Data source: NBH, HAS
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Liquidity and Capital

The amount of quid assets (securities and interbank receivables) increased by HUF 1,231 billion
- {+9.9%)} while the sector's loan to deposit ratio (net customer foan / customer deposits} improved by
13.5% points (90.2% as of December 2015) due fo the growth in the customer deposit portfolic and

decreasing customer loans.

“The new liquidity measures by the Hungarian Nationat Bank introduced in 2011 aiso contributed to the

-improving liquidity. The balance sheet coverage ratio (Liquid Assets / Total Assets) should be kept over
10%, while the limit for deposit coverage ratio (Liquid Assets / Customer Deposits) is 20%. These

" measures were replaced by the new Liguidity Coverage Ratio (.CR}, which is in effect from October,
2015 with a limit of 80%. The limit will be increased to 100% starting from April 20-16.

The capital position of the banking sector is adequate, the Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) was 20.5% as
of September 2015 (mcludes Co-operative credit institutions).

. Loan-deposit ratio

~~~~~~~~~

2011 2012 2013 2014 2016

Data source: NBH, Hungarian Accounting Standards (HAS}

Capital Adequacy Ratio (%)

(17.4%
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Data source: NBH, 2011-2014: Credit institutions operating as joinf-stock companies and Special Financial Institutions
aggregate figures; 2015: Total Banking sector incl. Co-opearative credit institutions )
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7. Government / R.eguiatory Actions

The Hungarian banking sector has undergone several government actions during the previous years.

Exchange rate gap/ unilateral contract modification

Supreme Courl's Act and Settlement Act released in July and October, 2014 covers ali HUF and foreign

currency retail loan and financial leasing contracts. According to the Supreme Court decision the

~ exchange rate gap used by the banks was considered as null and void, and general contract conditions
- "are unfair, which allowed the unilateral changes of pnces Totai cost P&L effect for the banklng sector
- was around HUF 600 bllllon . _

' H_UF conversion

According to the agreement made betwaen the banks and NBH the banks converted all foreign currency

mertgage loans at a fixed exchange rate of 309 BUF/EUR and 256.5 HUF/CHF, white unsecured and

~ car-finance loans of households were converted info HUF in Q4 2015. Disappearance of the exchange
rate risk of FX-denominated mortgage ioans followmg ihe conversion will have a positive effect on the .
sector, .

Fair banking law

The banking sector has to apply the new regulation on consumer loan pricing (fair banking pricing) for
the converted mortgage loans according to the HUF conversmn Act It has been placed from the the ‘h

of January 2013,

- New regulation regarding PTt and LTV in consumer lending

National Bank of Hungary adopted a regulation aimed at the prevention of excessive household loan
_ outflows in the form of an NBH Decree. Entering into effect on 1 January 2015, the new regulations are
- applicable to all new loan contracts concluded in the territory of Hungary. The new regulation basically

.consists of two main piflars. The payment-fo-income ratio (PTI} reduces customers’ debt accumulation by
limiting the debt-servicing burden that can be undertaken by customers when they grant a new loan in a
pre-specified proportion of their reqular legal income. [n the case of collateralised loans {e.g. morigage
loans), the loan-to-value ratio (LTV} limits the size of available loans in proportion to the collateral (home
vaiue}. In the case of new HUF-denominated loans granted after 1 January 2015, the payment-to-income
ratio may not exceed 50 per cent and, for customers in higher income brackets (a net income of HUF
400,000 or ahove), 60 per cent,

Extraordinary bank tax

The extraordinary bank tax amounts to almest HUF 200 billion per annum for the whole banking sector,
however in the coming vears it will be decreased step by step. The tax burden is well in excess of those
jevied in other countries of the European Union and has led to deterioration in the profits of banking
sector players, in addition to harming their growth prospects. On 9 February 2015 the government
announced that the banking sector tax will be reduced from 2016 through the modification of the tax
base and tax rate. According to the law approved by the Pasfiament the extra bank levy will decrease in
two steps: from 0.53% {0 0.24% in 2016 and fo 0.21% in 2017, while adjusted fotal assets of year-end
2009 will remain the tax base.

Capital requirements

In fine with the ECB directives, capital requirement will increase starting from 2016, due to the new
huffers. Capital conservation buffer will be implemented from 2016 at a rate of 0.625% (increasing
every year up to 2.5%). The Ceniral Bank introduces the Systemic Risk Buffer from January 2617 (0 to
2%) and it will be linked fo the problematic non performing project finance portfolic and repossessed real
estate. Other Systemically Important Institution (O-SiI) Buffer will be in introduced from January 2017
with a maximum up o 2%. NBH identified 9 banks in Hungary as systemically impertant. Three groups
were formed with a buffer of 0,5%, 1% and 2% and CIB is expscted fo receive a 0,5% buffer. The
Counter Gyclical conservation buffer can be introduced by NBH iater based on a system indicator.
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IIl. Business strategy and priorities

in 2013 CIB Bank, with the approval and support of parent bank Intesa Sanpaolo, formulated its strategy
. that has been reconfirmed for the next years in 2015 again also in face new competifive and regulatory
environment {ollowing the recent legislative measure in favour of the consumer clients: over the medium
term, the Bank is focusing on growth in strategically impertant segments and products, while maintaining
- its market posltlon in areas where growth itself is not the primary target. The mast important objective of
. the strategy is to ensure that the Bank returns to operate profitably by applymg an eff c;ent and effectwe
operatsng model. : _ _ .

' __Thg strategy is based on three main pillars:

»  persistence internal separation of the "Core bank” from the management of non-strategic assets,

e rehalancing of the Bank business by developmg the consumer and smail- and medium-sized
enterprises segmenis and

s  proactive management of the non-performing part of the loan portfolio.

The strategic objectives of the plan are:

s to deliver excellent client service io ensure the Bank becomes the primary financial service
provider for its customers; .

»  to ensure a sustainable and graduat return to profitability of the "Core Bank™;
*  to wind down value eroding assets and business.

CIB is placing particular emphasis on the development of its retail business, and as a part of this, it
aspires fo become the primary bank for its customers. Key elements of this approach inctude the
simplification of banking processes, the improvement of customer satisfaction and digitalization which
hecomes more and more key in sales performance and service model. All this will require a continucus
expansion of the offer through the.addition of premium banking services, as well as the provision of high-
standard asset management products and top-quality, standardized banking services through electronic
channels and the branch network. On the retai lending side, it is introducing processes and developing
commercial channels through which it can increase the number of loan placements in a market that is
otherwise undergoing profound change.

Being one of the main market players in the corporate lending segment, CIB is executing a strategy
aimed at preserving its position, Among other things, worth to mention is his activity in supporting its
customers to apply for the 3rd phase of HNB and for EU furds. CIB continues to offer its own funded or
the EXIM Bank refinanced loan schemes and its leasing products while professional EU fund
consuitancy and factoring service - already among the market leaders - are exampies of the enriched
product catalogue offering. Beside these over the coming years it wilt make even better use of the
synergies inherent in its refationship with its parent company, Intesa Sanpaolo, in order fo help
strengthen its presence in the muitinational corporate sector.

The other focus of CIB's medium-term strategy is financing the real economy, and accordingly, it is
enhancing the product and service offer for the SME segment. Besides the expansion of financing from
its own resources, the aim is. to actively offer subsidized forms of financing together with professional
support if needed and partner corporate and SME customers in EU financing needs. Apart from SME
and corporaie jcans as well as leasing services, CiB Bank provides other financing options for
companies, such as factoring.

Al the focus of CIB’s business objectives are the areas that have long-term profit potential, and therefore
the Bank wili continue to manage separately its customers who have loan products that it no longer
wishes to keep in its portfolic. This non-legal internal separation is of critical importance for the
successful implementation of the business strategy. . :
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III Strengths and potentlal rlsks of CIB Group

‘Main strengths
1. Sohd fiquidity position

“CI8 Group has a strong Hquidity position, thanks to the sofid customer deposit portfolic. The hlgh degree
“‘dependency on Intesa Sanpaolo has begun to decrease over-the past years as CIB has focused hard on
enhancing its self funding capacity. As a consequence the share of Intesa Sanpacio funding within the

total deposit fell from 29% as of December 2011 to 6% as of December 2015, Efforts in the previous
. years to increase the customer deposit base and the deleveraging have improved the ioan to depos:t

' ret|o of the CIB Group from 129 1 % in December 2011 to 75.4% in December 2015.
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2. Cost efficiency

. The Group has inifiated and begun the execution of a wide-ranging cost management programs that
_resulted 22% decreass in staff number compared fo 2011 (-6.3% compared to Dec 2014) and lower
‘operating costs. Operating expenses are kept under strict control and declined continuously, despite the
additional recovery unit expenses which were necessary to improve overall recovery rate on NPLs.

Operating Expenses
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3. Capital adequacy

CiB Group has a solid capitat position, the capital adequacy ratio of CIB Group under Pilar 1 totaled
18.1% at the end of September 2015, From 2014 the Group applies new Basel |Il. {CRR} regulations for
capital adequacy calculation. Capital adequacy of the Group is based on IFRS consolidated figures. The
capital adequacy ratio of the Bank was 20.6% under Pilar 1, as of September 2015, Further aczlons to
: mamtam stabie capatal adequacy stlll remained a top prlonty for the Group. :
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4. Strong market position

CIB Group has a solid client base across the country in ali market segments including retail, local
.corporate, SME and micro businesses through its banking and leasing network. The Group is ane of the
largest players in corporatée lending where it had 9.1% market share according to the latest available data
{November 2015). lts customer base totaled to 460 thousand customers by the end of December 2015,
The market share of CIB on the customer loans market was 7.4% (November 2015), and had the same
' share on the customer deposit market.

5. Clearly Defined Organizational Structure & Strong Governance

"CIB Group has clearly defined organizational structure and strong governance model {o ensure
transparency, accountability and integrity of its operations. The Group's organizational structure consists
of business units, control and support units to enable efficient management across all of the Group's
- entities. Key executive decision making is further enhanced by operational committees that decide and
review spectrum of matters concerning commerciat risk assumption, liquidity, distressed asset
_ managemenrt, legal, regulatory and compliance related subjects. Furthermore operational management
- is enhanced by set of confrols and decision making mechanisms concerning Management Board,
Supervisory Board and Audit Committee. To comply with focal and EU-based regulatory frameworks the
Group established Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Commitiee and the Risk assumption and
Risk management Commitiee.

Potential risks
1. Credit risk

The effects of the unfavourable economic environment have negatively impacted asset guality across all
segments — and the related cost of risk. The Group applied prudent provisioning policy, which resulted in
significant losses during the previous years. Thanks to portfolio cleaning efforts the credit quality of the
portfolio started to improve in late 2014 and the positive tendency continued in 2015, which is reflected in
the moderate cost of risk in 2015, '

Net change in provision

175 -
150 A
125 -
100

HUF Bn

75 4
50 A
251,

2011 2013 2014

Data source: CIB Group, IFRS

47 B " Bank of JNTES4 i SH‘JPAOLQ



and its subsidiaries

Business Report
for the year ended 31 December 2015

2, Interest income and expenses

. Low demand for new financing over the past years caused the continuous erosion of the Group's

customer loan portfolio, while the fair hank iaw had a negative impact on consumer loan spreads. This
" together with the increasing proportion of Non Performing Loans resulted in a drop of interest income. On
the liabilities side the spread on sight deposits decreased continuously due to the base rate cuts of NBH.

- 3. Repossessed collateral risk

~ To minimise credit losses the Group started the repossession of real estate collaterals behind non
- petforming loans at the end of 2009. By the end of December 2016 the net book vaiue of the
repossessed real estate portfolio was HUF 68 hillion. .

4. Tax burdens

The extraordinary banking sector tax currently has a negative impact on the P&L of HUF 12 hillion. On
9 February 2015 the Government announced that the banking sector tax will be reduced from 2016.
. According to the law approved by the Parliament the extra bank levy will decrease in two steps: from

0.53% to 0.24% in 2016 and fo 0.21% in 2017, while adjusted total assets of year-end 2009 wil} remain

the tax base.

The transactional dufy came info effect m 2013 caused an additionat tax burden of around HUF 10
“billion annuzlly.

IV. Outiook for the Banking Sector

1. Sector profitability remains weak

The conversion of foreign currency foans info HUF coupled with the fair banking act put loan spreads
under pressure, while the settlement of bid-offer spread and unilateral interest increases had a negative
effect on loan volume. Although the one-off loss coming from the settlement was already accounted for in
2014, the sbove mentioned effects on loan volumes and spreads will have a long iasting negative impact
Oon revenuas.

I addition volume of non-performing loans wili remain high in the near future, which significantly affects
the profitability of the banking sector including CIB through further impairments, lower income generation
and increased costs of recovery activities,

2, Slow recovery in banking sector

Although the Hungarian economy will continue to grow by around 2-2.5% in 20186, and the demand for
new loans shows signs of improvement both on the corporate and on the retail market, the volume of
customer loans is expected to decrease next year, as new loan volume can not compensate the
amortization of the existing exposures and NPL portfolio cleaning. The residential real estate market .
shows signs of recovery, but is stilf very far from the pre-crisis level. The Hungarian Government
announced at the end of 2015 a new program to support families buying new home (CSCK). As the
government support is quite generous it might give a boost to the residential real estate market. The
commercial real-estate market still suffer from the excess capacities that were built in the pre-crisis
years, which makes the banis extremely cautious in financing new real estate projects,

. 3. Credit quality improvement

As a resuit of the conversion into forints and the settlement of household's loans, the risk of new defaults
in the existing portfolio declined considerably. In case of new loans, the debt cap rules mitigate this risk.
However, the high ratic of distressed household mortgage loans continues to be a significant risk in the
financial system. Adjustment of the personal bankruptey conditions and the expansion of Naticnal Asset
Management Agency for mortgage loans may help mitigate this risk by facilitating the resolution of the
" non-performing portfolio.
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- Gorporate portfolio cleaning and the wind down of NPL portfolio will be supported by the activation of the
. hationai bad bank {MARK Ltid..} and might ease the pressure on the Balance Sheet.

V Evaluation on the performance of CIB Group mcludlng net
assets, f:nancnal and earnmg pOSItiOﬂ ' e

 Assets

The balance sheet total of CIB Group amounted to HUF 1;676 bitlion {-3.3% compared o Dec-2014) as
of December 2015, The lower balance was primarily a consequence of shrinking customer loan portfolic,

Customer Loans

At the end of December, 2015 CIB Group's consolidated gross foan poertfolio was HUF 1,084 billion (-
18.3%), haif of the decrease came from the government actions on retail loans, while the rest from wind
‘down of NPL and risky portfelio. Within the total portfolio the proportion of refail loans (mortgage, car
financing and others) decreased to 33.8% (-2.2%} by the end of December, 2015 as a resuit of the
government measures, while real estate financing accounted for 31.6% (-0.6%) of the portfolic. The
share of farge corporate loans stagnated, while SME and Smalt Business financing improved slightly
during the current pericd. Demand for new financing increased compared to 2014, retail new
disbursemenis improved by 250% compared to last year, while SME new fnancmg rose by 15%,
supported by the Funding for Growth program of the Centrai Bank.

" Loan portfolio quality

The deterioration of the credit quality of CIB Group's loan did not continue in 2015, and the share of 90
days past due loans decreased to 16.8% (-5.0%) thanks to limited new inflow and portfolio cleaning
activities, The Improvement is connected to the consumer segment, mainly thanks to government
measures, but SME and Small Business delinquencies improved as well. The share of 80 days past due
morigage portfolio decreased by 12.5% points compared to December 2014 to 18.7% by the end of
December 2015. in case of corporate real estate finance, portfolio quality stagnated this year and the
share of 90 days past due portfolic was 23.9% (+0.5%) by the end of December 2015. During the year
CiB provisioned HUF 34.4 billion to cover polential losses from non performing loans.

Securities

The Group held securities porifelio of HUF 142 billion by December, 2015 (-27.4%) of which trading
portfolio amounted to HUF 60 hitlion; avallable for sale portfolio reached HUF 82 billion, while there were
no held {o maturity investments. The majority of the security portfolio {97.3% of lotal securities held}
consisted of govemment honds.

Repossessed properties, Tangible and Intangible Assets

Net hook value of fixed and intangible assets reached HUF 93.3 bhillion (-17.6% compared to December
2014} out of which the net book value of repossessed real estates was HUF 67.7 billion.

interbank Receivables

CIB Group's fiquid assets portfolio — cash and equivalents and interbank foans — amounted to HUF 502.6
* billion (+52.2%) by the end of December, of which 34.4% was placed within Intesa Sanpaolo Group.
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. Liabilities -
. Customer Deposits

© Total customer deposits, including issued bonds, amounted to HUF 1,208 biflion {+0.1%) by the end of

~ December, 2015, Corporate deposits increased during the year, while retaif deposuts decreased sllghtly,

- due to competltton ofgwernment bends and mvestment funds : S
* Deposit from banks

" Interbank funds -~ including subordinated de_posiis - fotaled to HUF 281 hillion (+4.1%) as of December,

. 2015, Part of the funds came from the Group's parent company, accounting for 22% of the total of

~interbank deposits, while the remaznmg parl was rece:ved from supranatlonai financial |nst|tut|ons and .
-from the central bank. ) _ :

. Equity

L CIB Group’s total shareholders’ equity was HUF 148 bl||10r'l (»20 0%) the reason for the decrease is the. _
HUF 40.2 bn Ioss in the current year. _ S . )

V.A&nm(HuFbmom
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Data source: CIB Group, IFRS
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Profit and loss

The Group closed the year with a oss of HUF 40.2 billion, representing a significant improvement from
- previous year since the loss decreased to 39% of the 2014 loss.,

Revenues

" Total revenue of CIB Group amounted to HUF 59.8 billion (-31.6% compared to the same period of
2014), out of which Net Interest Income was HUF 29.5 billion {-26.3%). Net Commission Income was
HUF 27.8 billion {-5.6%), while Trading Income totalled to HUF -3.4 billion {-124.4%), Other operating
income réached HUF 5.9 bn {(+103,4%).

‘Net interest income was fower than in the same period of 2014, due to the negative impact of the
decrease in customer ioan volume partly as a result of government measures connected to consumer
loans {HUF -3.5 bn negative impact), while loan spreads were deteriorated in the consumer segment,
due to the fair bank faw (HUF -6.1 bn). In addition deposit spreads were under pressure, because of the
" base rate cuts of the central bank (HUF -0,9 bn).

Net commission income decreased due i@ lower fransactional turnover,

Lower Trading income was the consequence of one-off prepayment fee (HUF 10.2 bn) connected to a
long term bank loan facilities that CIB Group paid back before maturity, In addition to that, the unrealised
revaluation gain connected to the hedging derivative portfolic was also lower by HUF 5 bn in 2015, than
in 2014, . : . ' - ' - :

i Revenues (HUF Bn)
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B_reak_down of revenues - 2014
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Data source: CIB Group, IFRS
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Operating Expenses

~ Total operating expenses increased by 4.2% compared to 2014 and amounted to HUF 49.6 billion
without the bank tax and transaction duty. Personnel expenses |ncreased by 3.3% in 2015, being offset
by cost saving in other admamstratwe expenses

Operatmg Expenses
{HUF Bn)

2011 - 2012 2013 2014 2015

Data source: CIB Group, IFRS

Banking Sector Taxes and Duties

Total extracrdinary bank tax of the Group as of December 2015 amounted to HUF 11.9 billion.
Transactional Duly expense for the year reached HUF 10.1 hillion.
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- Allowances and impairments

The amount of new allowances, impairments and provisions reached HUF 31.2 billion, almost HUF 87
bilkion less than in 2014. Qut of the total, loan impairments were HUF 34.4 bn (HUF 9.1 billion lower than
in 2044), 40% of the new provisioning came from the corporate segment (64% in 2014), mainly

“ connected to project finance, while 60% came from the retail business (36% in 2014), mostly connected

~ to the marigage portfolio.

" In 204 the Group made a provision of HUF 70.2 bn on the potential impact of settlement and conversion
- of retail loans which covered the losses arose in 2015 while the unused provision of HUF 8. 2 bn was
“reversed after the settlement. :

- Impairment connected to investment properties amounted to HUF 3.5 bn,

Breakdown of provisions - 2014

Govemment
Prov|5|ons Loan measures Real-estate Other
oo eSO 0
3,4 -1,4
: Breakdown of provisions - 2015
Government )
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Data source: CIB Group, IFRS
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g -_'VI Operatlons of the subsidiaries in 2015 ¢ -

"The Group structure was the following at each 31 December:;

{number of companies) ' : .2014 2013
Companies for providing services and products to Group's customers . .5 .5
Companigs responsible for the management of repossessed assels S '
Companies under unwinding procedure ' | '
Total

we o W
0w W

Companies for providing services and products to Group’s customers

+ CIB Leasing Ltd..

- The business profile of the company, founded in 2000, is closed-end financial lease — primarily refated {o
“motor vehicles — and to provide financing to the purchase of vehicles and machinery. At the end of 2010
CIB Credit Lid., CIB Properly Ltd., and CIB Residential Property Ltd. merged into CIS Leasing Ltd.
making the company the only entity in CIB Group providing financial leasing services. The operation of
the company was significantiy affected by the performance of the Leasing market. New volume on the
marke! increased by 13% compared to 2014 and reachad HUF 331 biflion during the first three guariers
~ of 2015. With a market share of 5.8% {as of September 2015) CiB Leasing subsidiaries were one of the
key players on the market. The total assets of the company in December 2015 were HUF 125.1 billion,
significantly affected by the decreasmg customer loan porfolio as a result of the Settlement Act and
preferential exchange rate conversion of household loans. A net result for :he year 2016 was HUF 6.3
bi|||0n foss. : S

« CIBRentitd..

The company is specialized in operative leasing transactions. The total assets of the company at the end
of 2015 ware HUF 5.8 billion, while profit after tax reached HUF 0.3 billion. CIB Bank, the 100% owner of
Rent approved HUF 2.3 billion dividend payment, utilizing the 2015 year's profit and refained earnings.

« CIB Real Estate Leasing Ltd..

The company started its operation in May 2001 with business activity of financial leasing of real estates.
At the end of 2015 total assets of CIB Real Estate Leasing Ltd.. amounted to HUF 4.7 billion, while its
net result was a loss of HUF 762 million.

+ CiB Insurance Broker Lid.

The company was founded in 2001 o deal with insurance brokerage activities. At the end of 2015 {otal
assets of CIB Insurance Broker Ltd. amounted to HUF 1.5 billion, while its profit after tax was HUF 0.2
bilion. CiB Bank, the 100% owner of CIB Insurance Broker approved HUF 1.2 billion dividend payment,
utilizing the 2015 year's profit and retained earnings.

« CiB Factor Lid..

The company became part of CIB Group in 2004. )ts main activity is the factoring of receivables and the
cross-geliing of products with the SME division of the Bank. At the end of 2015 fotal assets of the
company reached HUF 16.3 billion, while profit after tax amounted to HUF 0.3 billion. CiB Bank, the
100% owner of CIB Factor approved HUF 2.2 biftion dividend payment utilizing the 2015 year's profit and
refained earnings.

m .. Financial Statemenis data are prepared in accordance with Hungarian Accounting Law
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'. 1._Compan|es responsib[e for the management of repossessed assets

.# Recovery Ltd.

" Recovery Lid. (previousty Expert Lid.) is the main vehicle for the repossession of real estates. On 31
December 2011 CiB REAL Ltd.. (a company dealing with the management of Group’s operating

. premises) merged with Recovery Lid. The sole legat successor of the merged entities is Recovery Ltd..

. Total assets of the company closed at HUF 79.6 billion. Due fo financing cost of the real estate porifolio
‘and because of some impairment connecled to the prewousiy repessessed real estates the company_-

. - - closed the year with. a Ioss of HUF 5.1 billlon

. CIB Car Ltd,

The company was founded in year 2006, to deal with vehicle trading. Totai assets at the end of 2015
- were HUF 0.2 biltion, while the annual resuit was a Ioss of HUF 101 m:lllon Wlndmg up procedure of GiB
. Car started in 1 January 2016. .

» Brivon Hungary Ltd.

'_ ‘Brivon Hungary Lid. was established in 2002 as an SPV, who holds a significant share in 2 residential
" - project as the only asset. Total assets of the company were HUF 3.0 billion, while net resuit for 2015
- amounted to HUF 0.06 billion ioss. Winding up procedure of Brivon started in 1 January 2016. -

' Winding up procedure finished

o CIB Leasing Holding Ltd. |
+ The winding up procedure of CiB Leasing Holding has been finished in 13 January 2015.

VI, Key events and processes occurring after the balance sheet
date

No significant events or processes occurred after the Balance sheet date, during the period prior to the
preparation of the financial statements and the approval thereof that could have a material ;mpact on the
Group financial or earnings position.
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VIIi. Utilisation of financial instruments in the Group

The Group holds a substantial quantity of liquid financial instruments. The purpose of the HUF 502.6
bilion in cash and shori-term bank placements is to ensure immediate liquidity above the unencumbered
high quality security portfolio. The portfolio of securifies heid for trading of a value of HUF 59.6 bilfion,
- saerves several purposes at the same {ime: these investments (besides serving customers with securities)
- represent a shori-term profit-eaming opportunity for the Bank, white also serving as a secondary source
- of liquidity besides its cash-type assets. The majority of the securities portfolio that totals HUF 78.9 bitlion
- is available for sale (AFS), while there were no securities in the held-to-maturity porifolio. The Group
‘hoids a government bond (former municipality bond) portfolic up fo HUF 0.8 bilion treated as Loans and
advances to customers,

The derivative transactions concluded by the Group cover the following derivatives: (1.) FX forward
‘(stock-exchange and OTC} contracts {2.) FX swaps, (3.} FX options, {4.) interest rate swaps and (5.)
forward rate agreements The Group performs such transactions mainly for hedging purposes. In the
latter case the primary objective is not to hedge individual transactions (with a few exceptsons see
' below), but to reduce the bank’s giobal FX and inferest rate risk posmon

IX. Risk-management and hedging policy of the Group

The Group's regulations pertaining to the various significant types of risk are approved, and reviewed at
least once a year, by the Management Board. The Group has credit risk management, market risk
management, liquidity and liquidity crisis management, country risk management and operational risk
management policies. These regulations serve to define the framework of its activitles related to the
specific areas of risk management along unified principles across the entire Group.

CIB Group's credit risk management policy defines fundamentals of credit risk management across the
“Group, risk appetite of the Group both on general level and on an annual basis adjusted to the changing
husiness environment. Basic roles and responsibilities, clear segregation of duties and major tools of
credit risk measurement and management are unambiguously defined in the policy. .

The market risk management policy includes the guiding principles related to currency and share-price
risk, as well as interest risk, the regulations containing methodology of sensitivity analyses and vaiue-at-
risk calcuiations, as well as the market dsk limits. .

The liquidity policy determines the fundamental principles, goals, and available means of and procedures
for liquidity management. Beyond these, it also regulates the permissible extent of Hiquidity limits, as well
as the means and the organizational framework for monitoring them. When elaborating the liquidity
strategy, the bank's senior management takes info consideration the likely future deveiopment of
husiness volumes, and the cost and other attributes of available funds. The liquidity policy includes the
liquidity contingency policy, which specifies the procedures to be followed and the range of means that
may be employed in an unexpected but possible crisis situation, and the order in which these may be
applied depending on the causes and nature of the crisis. In these regulations, the bank also quantifies
the maximum tolerance related to Base! 3 regulatory liquidity ratios, the LCR and the NSFR.

The Group applies hedge accounting to some specific assets and liabilities hedged by interest rate
swaps in order to mitigate its interest rate risk in the Banking Book. The method of recognising the

-resulting fair value gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument. The Group in accordance with IFRS and intesa Sanpaclo Group policies designates cerlain
derivatives as hedges of the fair vaiue of recognised assets or liabilities or firm commitments (fair vaiue
hedge). In the case of derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting, changes in the fair vaiue of
such derivative instrument are recognised immediately through profit and loss.

The country risk management policy reguiates the method for establishing limits for individual countries,
and also specifes the extent of the regularly reviewed limits.

The operational risk management guidelines define the events that are grouped info this risk category,
and the methods for measuring the risks of this type borne by the Group. .
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" X. - Price, credit, interest, liquidity and cash-flow risks of the

In the course of ifs business operations, the Group is primarily and mainly exposed to credit risk. The
mitigation of this type of risk is achieved parily through compliance with the statutory requirements and
* internal limits, and partly through prudent lending and loss-provisioning practices. : -

Legat requirements as well as best practices of risk management are transformed into daity operations of
. the Group by internat regulations. The internal regulations treat in detail the procedures related fo debtor

rating, deal approval, limit-sefting, the recognition and evaluation of collateral, loan and customer
monitoring, and risk management, applicable to the various customers and customer groups. They also
specify the lending-related responsibilities and duties of the individual organizational units. In keeping

" with the requirements of the supervisory bodies and its owner, the Group pursues a prudent policy with

regard to the assumption of risk.

‘Lending process is managed along structured principles in its entire compiexity from customer request
‘via credit approval and monitering untif full repayment of the loan or, if unavoidable, unfil work-out

.. management. Basis of any credit-risk related decision is the exposure of the group of connected clients
‘towards CIB Group as a whole.

_On account of its activitios the Group is exposed to interest rate risk in ifs core business, Accepting a

certain level of interest rate risk is inherent in the business of banking and can be a major source of

- results and value creation. Each year, the Management Board, under the supervision of the Supervisory

. Board and in harmony with the group fevel risk folerance of the parent company, determines the risk

" appetite and corresponding limits. Reports on the current interest rate risk position are submitted to the

- respective risk management committees on a monthly basis and regufated in the banking book interest
rate risk management policy.

Special emphasis is also placed on the management of fiquidity and cash-flow risks, due to the high
. importance of maintaining the Bank's solvency and ensuring the safety of customer deposits at ail times.

Among the various price risks, the Group is predominantly susceptible to the impacts of changes in
currency exchange rates, while fluctuations in the market values of securities and other prices have a
lesser effect. The Group aims to hedge its FX positions as well as possible: the carefully considered
assumption of positions is achieved as a part of the trading activities performed by the Treasury.

Xl. Research a.nd development

In 2015 and 2014 the Group had no own research and development and did not participated in the
financing of any research projects. '

95 - Bakof INTESA il SNNPAOLO



CiB BANK Ltd.
and its subsidiaries

ili, il

Business Report
" for the year ended 31 December 2015

:'XII Employment pollcy of the Group

in 2015 keaping the focuses of CIB Group, Human Resources Management committed itself {o develop
the HR policies and improve its internal services. Great emphasis was placed on recognizing
outstanding performances both at persona! and group level, and on retaining and developing the hest
colleagues.

After analysmg the the employee satisfaction survey results in the first quarter of 2015, the Group
. worked out action steps in order to increase employee engagement which is crucial in building a more
profitable and valuable organisation.

o " Actions taken comprised the restructuring the CIB Spirit pertfolio (Recognitions, Family, Sport,
' Health-care, Discounts, etc.) which was refreshed by introducing new elements.

= At the TOP 100 Gala Event the best sales colleagues were celebrated, there was voting for the
“Gold Teams” and more than 20 managers won the “Leadership Achievement” award.

»  The Group launched more programs in order to find, recognize and deveiop the top periormer
colleagues. In 2015 the second Leadership Talent program was closed and the third was
launched at the same time. For those colieagues who decided not o be a leader but stil feel the
need for a constant development on their own professional field the first Expert Talent program

-got started with more than 120 employses.

© = As a new element in the fringe benefits, the tax free support for housing loan repayment was
© introduced.

»  Ag part of the Group's social responsibility programme, group of volunteers, known as CIB Spirit
Ambassadors organized various programs related to charity and sports.

" The Group renewed its training programmes in order to better support the execution of business geals. In
~ “a series of development centers bankers were assessed from several business segments and as a result
their development needs got determined. Training series for branch managers and sales advisors were
carried out; the Smail Business Academy was launched, the orientation program for new joiners was
reformed and the SME-Leasing sales program was launched as well,

During 2015 the Group started to use new and innovative recruitments tocls {LinkedIn, Professwn
database).

Xlll. Sites of operation
The Group's head office is iocated at 1027 Budapest, Medve u. 4-14.
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- XIV. Environmental protection

As in the previous years, the Company continues to pay special attention to environmental protection
~ and energy saving. The implementation of the energy management system standard wil} allow us {0
widely enforce the energy awareness and energy saving aspects of our activities. . o

" The steps of environmentat protection and energy saving in 2015:

"« In 2016 the group will implement the 1SO 50001 energy management standard. The preparation
~ works are done. The new energy management system will enable us to involve the co-
-departments to the energy management process, With the implementation of the standard we will
comply with the ISP expectations, professional requirements and the new regulatory changes at
the same time,
e  Reviewed the UPS units in HQ Petrezselyem. During this process we reduced the number of UPS
units. One unit was switched off last year and the other one switched off this year. Therefore we
save 58 MWh energy loss and 18t of CO2 emission. .
"« Upgraded the UPS system in CIB 24 call center. The new system is up-to-date and more adapted
__ to the real needs so the system use far less energy.
s Changed the refrigerant gases in our liquid chillers. The oid type R22 gas was changed to an
anvironment friendly gas type. The new gas is ozone friendly.
«  Sticked energy saving stickers next to ight switches, taps and thermostats in the operational real
_estates. _ : : . ' . L _

. 17 February 2016

Bl

Andrea De”ﬁi::helis

o é _
CEb and Chairman of the Board Deputy CEQ and CFO
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